TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
2016 ANNUAL REPORT

PLEASE BRING THIS REPORT WITH YOU TO TOWN MEETING AT

BERLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

TUESDAY, MARCH 7™, 2017 at 10am

Pre Town Meeting will be on Monday, March 6™ at 6pm at Berlin Elementary School

(SEE REVERSE FOR SCHOOL REPORT)



BERLIN TOWN OFFICE
108 SHED ROAD
BERLIN, VERMONT 05602
www.berlinvt.org

TOWN CONTACT INFORMATION

TOWN CLERK 229-9298 berlintownclerk@berlinvt.org
Assistant Town Clerk 229-9657 assistanttownclerk@berlinvt.org

TOWN OFFICE: 802-223-4405 FAX 229-9530

Town Administrator /

Zoning Administrator 552-8801 townadministrator@berlinvt.org

Assistant Town Administrator/ Zoning 229-2529 zoning@berlinvt.org

/ Health Officer

Assessor 229-4880 listers@berlinvt.org

Treasurer/Tax Collector 229-9380 treasurer@berlinvt.org

Sewer Commission 552-8806 sewer@berlinvt.org

Highway Department 223-7337 highway@berlinvt.org

Historical Society 552-8804 historicalsociety@berlinvt.org

Berlin Resource Line 552-8805 ﬁ Recordec! message of Town .

Information updated each Friday
POLICE DEPARTMENT Emergency: 911 or 223-4400 www.berlinvt.org/police.htm
Other Business: 223-4401 facebook: Berlin Police Department
FIRE DEPARTMENT Emergency: 911 or 223-5555 www.berlinfiredepartment.org
Other Business: 223-5531 facebook: Berlin Volunteer Fire Department
BERLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL (BES) 223-2796 www.berlinschool.org
Pre K — 6th grade FAX 229-0222
U-32 HIGH SCHOOL 229-0321 www.u32.org
7th —12th grade FAX 223-7411
WASHINGTON CENTRAL SUPERVISORY UNION 229-0553 www.wcsuonline.org
(WcCsu) FAX 229-2761
SCHOOL BUS DISPATCH 229-4404
(Last updated 1/27/16)

The cover photograph and other aerial photos in this Town Report were taken by Bill Croney in 2016 for the Berlin
Historical Society.



2016

Dedication

Wanda Baril

It is our pleasure to dedicate this years’ report to Wanda Baril. She has devoted many volunteer
hours in her role as liaison on our Emergency Management Team for the Red Cross in addition
as manager of the emergency shelter. She does the role seamlessly, ensuring that necessary
supplies are on hand to provide a safe haven for citizens in an emergency. Wanda has served
Berlin on several committees and boards in addition to being a Justice of the Peace. Her
contributions have indeed made Berlin a stronger and better community.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT — ANNUAL MEETING WARNING

TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
WARNING AND NOTICE
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
Tuesday, March 7, 2017

The legal voters of the Town of Berlin are hereby warned and notified to meet at
10:00 AM at the Berlin Elementary School on Tuesday, March 7, 2017 to vote on the following
articles. Articles 1 through 27 shall be voted by Australian ballot. The polls will open at
10:00 AM and close at 7:00 PM. A pre-town meeting to discuss all articles to be voted by
Australian ballot is scheduled for 6:00 PM on Monday, March 6, 2017 at the Berlin Elementary
School.

Residents may register to vote prior to the election at the Town Clerk’s Office or on-line
at the Secretary of State’s website. Residents may also register to vote at the election site on
Town Meeting Day. A voter may obtain an Absentee Ballot by contacting the Town Clerk (229-
9298) or coming into the office by 3:30 PM on Monday, March 6, 2017. Absentee Ballots must
be received by the Town Clerk no later than the close of the polls at 7 PM on March 7, 2017.
Voters wishing to vote absentee should request ballots early.

The articles to be voted by Australian ballot are as follows:
Article 1:  To elect the following Town Officers, for the terms specified:

One (1) Selectboard member for a three (3) year term;

Two (2) Selectboard members for a one (1) year term each;
One (1) Town Clerk for a three (3) year term,;

One (1) Grand Juror for a one (1) year term;

Article 2: Shall the Town appropriate $2,931,871 for necessary Town expenses for the
period Julyl, 2017 through June 30, 2018?
Article 3: Shall the Town appropriate $247,658 to the Berlin Volunteer Fire Department for
payment of necessary expenses from July 1, 2017 through June
30,2018?
Article 4: Shall the Town appropriate $28,271 to the Kellogg Hubbard Library?
Article 5: Shall the Town appropriate $10,920 to the Green Mountain Transit Agency?
Article 6: Shall the Town appropriate $5,700 to Central Vermont Home Health and
Hospice?
Article 7: Shall the Town appropriate $4,600 to the Montpelier Senior Activities Center?
Article 8: Shall the Town appropriate $4,000 to Just Basics, Inc.? (formerly Meals on
Wheels)
Article 9: Shall the Town appropriate $3,000 to the Central Vermont Council on Aging?
Article 10:  Shall the Town appropriate $1,200 to Central Vermont Adult Basic Education?
Article 11:  Shall the Town appropriate $1,000 to the Barre Area Senior Center?
Article 12:  Shall the Town appropriate $1,000 to the Vermont Center for Independent
Living?
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Article 13:

Article 14:

Services)

Article 15:
Article 16:
Article 17:
Article 18:
Article 19:

Article 20:
Article 21:

Article 22:
Article 23:
Article 24:

Article 25:
Article 26:
Article 27:

Shall the Town appropriate $1,000 to the Central Vermont Memorial Civic
Center?
Shall the Town appropriate $975 to CIRCLE?(formerly Battered Women’s

Shall the Town appropriate $800 to the Family Center of Washington County?
Shall the Town appropriate $800 to the Good Samaritan Haven homeless shelter?
Shall the Town appropriate $600 to Prevent Child Abuse Vermont?

Shall the Town appropriate $500 to the People’s Health & Wellness Clinic?
Shall the Town appropriate $500 to the Vermont Association for the Blind and
Visually Impaired?

Shall the Town appropriate $500 to Washington County Youth Services Bureau?
Shall the Town appropriate $500 to Capstone Community Action? (formerly
Central Vermont Community Action)

Shall the Town appropriate $500 to the Washington County Diversion Program?
Shall the Town appropriate $300 to the Good Beginnings of Central Vermont?
Shall the Town appropriate $300 to the Sexual Assault Crisis Team of
Washington County?

Shall the Town appropriate $300 to Home Share Now, Inc.?

Shall the Town appropriate $250 to OUR House of Central Vermont?

Shall the Town appropriate $150 to Green-Up Vermont?

The following articles will be voted at the traditional Town Meeting, beginning at

Article 28:
Article 29:

Article 30:

Article 31:

10:00 AM on Tuesday, March 7, 2017:

To elect a Town Moderator for the year ensuing.
To hear the reports of the Town Officers for 2016.

Shall the Town collect its real and personal property taxes, to defray the expenses
of the Town for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 in installments?
One-fourth of the taxes to be due, by delivery or by U.S. Postal Service
postmark(no private postal meter postmarks), on or before August 15, 2017, one-
fourth of the taxes due on or before November 15, 2017, one-fourth of the taxes
due on or before February 15, 2018 and one-fourth due on or before May 15,
2018, with an eight percent (8%) penalty and one percent (1%) interest per month
(or portion thereof) to be charged for late payment of any installment?

To discuss any other business that may legally come before the meeting.
Dated at Berlin, Vermont, this 1% day of February, 2017.
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Dated at Berlin, Vermont, this 1%, day of February, 2017.

TOWN OF BERLIN SELECTBCARD

%'
Ture Nelson, Chair
AR
Bradley To
e \ZJ}L

Pete Kelley

Jgperrty Hansen
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BERLIN TOWN OFFICERS

Term Expires

MODERATOR, Paul Gilli€S ..veueeeiesie ettt eee ettt aev e e e e st svesaneneerens 2017
TOWN CLERK, ROSEMArY IMOFSE ....vviiiieiiieiree ettt sttes st cere e svve s sae e stessaee s 2017
SELECTBOARD
Meetings on the 1st and 3rd Mondays of the month
Ture Nelson, Chair 3yearterm 2018
Jeremy Hansen, Vice Chair 3yearterm 2017
Pete Kelley, Secretary 1yearterm 2017
Wayne Lamberton 1lyearterm 2017
Bradley Towne 3yearterm 2019

BERLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meetings on the 2nd Monday of the month

Carl Parton, Chair 2 yearterm 2017
Jason Giroux 3yearterm 2018
Vera Frazier 3yearterm 2017
Chris Winters 3yearterm 2019
Amy Tucker 2 yearterm 2018

U-32 HIGH SCHOOL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meetings on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of the month
Jonathan Goddard 3yearterm 2018
George Gross 3yearterm 2017

GRAND JUROR, (Vacant)
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APPOINTED

BOARD OF SEWER COMMISSIONERS
Meetings on the 2nd and 4th Mondays of
the month — 3 year terms

Rob Allen, Chair 2017
Henry LaGue, Jr. 2017
Dana Marineau 2018
Wayne Lamberton 2018
John Charissakis 2019

Assistant to Board of Sewer Commissioners,
Mary Wissell

PLANNING COMMISSION
Meetings every 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of
the month — 4 year terms

Karla Nuissl, Chair 2019
Clara Ayer, Sec 2018
Geoffrey Farrell 2018
Sally Herring 2019
Gary LaRoche 2020

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD
Meetings every 1** & 3rd Tuesdays of the
month — 4 year terms

Robert Wernecke, Chair 2017
Karla Nuissl, Vice Chair 2017
John Friedrich 2018
Henry LaGue, Jr. 2017
John Fitzhugh 2018
Paul Irons, alternate 2018
Shane Mispel, alternate 2020

Recording Secretary, Carla Preston

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR

Dana Hadley
Dana Hadley

ASSISTANT TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Tom Badowski

ASSISTANT TOWN CLERK
Corinne Stridsberg

ROAD SUPERINTENDENT Tim Davis

Berlin Annual Report 2016

FIRE WARDEN (5 year term) Nick Garbacik

HEALTH OFFICER Tom Badowski
DEPUTY HEALTH OFFICER
POLICE CHIEF William Wolfe

TREASURER/TAX COLLECTOR /
DELIQUENT TAX COLLECTOR Diane Isabelle

CENTRAL VERMONT SOLID WASTE

MANAGEMENT
Matt Levin 2018
Paul Irons, Alternate 2018

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL
COMMISSIONER
Robert Wernecke 2017
Karla Nuissl, Alternate 2017

CENTRAL VT REGIONAL PLANNING TAC

Robert Wernecke 2017
TREE WARDENS
Dave Daut, Tree Warden 2018

Beth Daut, Deputy Tree Warden 2018

CAPITAL BUDGET COMMITTEE
Dana Hadley
Diane Isabelle
Roberta Haskin

CEMETERY COMMISSION
Randy Herring, Chairman
Jeremy Hansen 2019
(3 open vacancies)



CONSERVATION / RECREATION
Meets every other first Wednesday of the
month from September to May

Andrea Chandler

Ellen Sulek

Tom Willard

Ellen Drysdale

Beth Daut

Phil Gentile

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT TEAM
Meets the 2™ Thursday of the month
6:30pm at the fire station

Ture Nelson

Fred Doten

Bruce Richardson

Val Cyr

Katina Johnson

John Akielaszek, CERT # 5 Liaison

Julie Didier, CVMC Liaison

Wanda Baril, Red Cross Liaison/Shelter
Manager

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE

Elizabeth Fitzhugh 1398 West Hill Road

John Fitzhugh 1398 West Hill Road
Randal LaGue 176 Warner Road
Cathy Lamberton 1720 Airport Road
Matthew Levin 146 Lord Road
Margaret Monley 105 Lovers Lane
Muriel Morse 3939 VT Rt 12

Charles Pelletier

Kathleen Pelletier

Sue Rich

1815 Paine Turnpike N
1815 Paine Turnpike N.
575 Hill Street Ext.

FIRE DEPARTMENT LIAISONS

Executive committee meetings
Selectboard Representative

Jeremy Hansen

Resident Representative

(1 open vacancy)

2016

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Jeremy Hansen, Chair

Keith Robinson
Paul Irons
Wanda Baril
Dan Cambra

CHARTER COMMITTEE
Ture Nelson

Jeremy Hanson
Rosemary Morse
Corinne Stridsberg
Geoffrey Farrell

West Berlin, VT 05663
West Berlin, VT 05663
Berlin, VT 05641
Berlin, VT 05641
Berlin, VT 05602
West Berlin, VT 05663
Berlin, VT 05602
Berlin, VT 05602
Berlin, VT 05602
Berlin, VT 05602

2017
2017
2017
2017
2017

802-229-1733
802-229-1733

802-999-3881
802-229-1252

802-229-0498
802-229-0498
802-223-6755
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MINUTES FROM 2016 BERLIN TOWN MEETING

TOWN OF BERLIN,
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
Tuesday, March 1, 2016

TOWN

Rosemary Morse, Town Clerk opened the polls at I0AM
Moderator Paul Gillies opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Article 27: Elect a Town Moderator
Selectboard Chair Ture Nelson presided over the meeting during the election, by voice vote, of
Paul Gillies as Moderator.

Article 28: The moderator went through the reports of the town officers in the 2015 Town
Report.

Article 29: Collection of real and personal property taxes.
Bob Wernecke made the motion to accept the article was seconded by Shaun Bryan. The motion
passed by voice vote.

Article 30: A 10 year property tax exemption for the Capital City Grange #469.

The article was moved by Elizabeth Fitzhugh and seconded by Elizabeth Copeland to grant the
10 year exemption.

Tim Swartz, from the Grange spoke. He answered many questions regarding availability and use
of the Grange by Berlin residents.

Mike Stridsberg made a motion and seconded by Sister Seeber, to amend the article to a 2 year
exemption. Discussion followed.

A second motion was made to amend the 2 years to 5 years. This amendment passed by voice
vote.

Article is amended to an exemption of 5 years.

A standing count of 30 yes, 9 no passed the article as amended to the 5 year exemption.

Article 31: To discuss any other business that may legally come before the meeting.
Selectboard Chair Ture Nelson thanked Roberta Haskin for her 7 years on the Board.

Rep. Patti Lewis and Lt. Gov. Phil Scott each spoke briefly.

Planning Commission Chair Karla Nuissl wanted people to be aware of the Zoning changes that
are in progress and will be voted on later this year.

Jeremy Hansen answered a question regarding the 1% Local Option tax. He stated that the plan
is to include it in the Charter changes to be voted on later this year.

Meeting adjourned at 10:45AM.

Eosemary Morse
Town Clerk

Berlin Annual Report 2016 7



Page 2 Town Meeting Minutes March 2016

TOWN OF BERLIN,
ANNUAL SCHOOL MEETING
Tuesday, March 1, 2016

Moderator Paul Gillies opened the school meeting at 10:55AM.

Article 1: School Board vice Chair Chris Winters presided and Paul Gillies was elected
moderator for the coming year.

Article 2: Reports of School officials in Town Report.
Elizabeth Fitzhugh made a motion, seconded by Bob Wernecke to accept the reports, passed by
voice vote.

Article 3: Authorize the school directors to hold fund balance in a reserve fund.
Bob Wernecke made a motion, seconded by Jonathan Goddard, to accept the article, passed by
voice vote.

Article 4: Authorize the School Board to borrow money in anticipation of taxes.
Bob Wernecke made a motion, seconded by Jonathan Goddard to accept the article, passed by
voice vote.

Article 5: Other business

Carl Parton reported on Act 46. A study Committee from all 5 towns and U-32 has been meeting
for discussions about consolidation of schools and boards. Discussions have also included
Montpelier, Twinfield and Cabot. They would like to have a proposal by June.

Meeting adjourned at 11:00am.

Rosemary [‘bﬁ;rse
Town Clerk
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SELECTBOARD REPORT

Three members of the Selectboard were elected in March, 2016. Bradley Towne was re-elected to a
three year term. Pete Kelley and Wayne Lamberton were elected to one year terms. Roberta Haskin left
the Board after serving the community for many years. The Selectboard conducts their annual Board
reorganization at their first meeting following Town Meeting. Ture Nelson was elected Chair, Jeremy
Hansen, Vice Chair and Pete Kelley, Secretary.

Town Audit

The independent audit ending June 30, 2016 was completed by Fothergill, Segale and Valley, CPA’s of
Montpelier. The fiscal year ended with a surplus of $155,089. The full audit report is included within this
report.

2016 Town Meeting

A municipal budget of $2,757,826 was approved at the March, 2016 Town Meeting. Voters also
approved $310,124 in special appropriations that included $245,158 for the Berlin Fire Department.

The grand list at the time the tax rate was set in July, 2016 was $4,981,445. The Selectboard set a
municipal tax rate of $.4629 per $100 of valuation. The current Common Level of Appraisal (CLA) is
105.84%.

A history of Berlin’s property tax rate follows:

School
School Non-
Town Local Residential  Residential  Total Total Non-
Year Rate Agreement Rate Rate Residential  Residential
2008 0.3924 1.1462 1.201 1.5386 1.5934
2009 0.3896 1.2464 1.2921 1.6542 1.6817
2010 0.4270 1.2771 1.3164 1.7042 1.7435
2011  0.4098 1.3541 1.3303 1.7638 1.7401
2012 0.4116 1.3748 1.3329 1.7864 1.7445
2013  0.4297 0.0009 1.4537 1.4123 1.8843 1.8429
2014  0.4706 0.0006 1.5219 1.4383 1.9931 1.9095
2015 0.4630 0.0008 1.5982 1.4727 2.0620 1.9365
2016  0.4629 .0008 1.5966 1.4740 2.0603 1.9377

Community Water Supply

The water project was substantially completed by the end of 2015 serving three customers. As of the
end of 2016 there are 34 customers connected to the system. We currently are selling 700,000 gallons
of water monthly. Our water is supplied by three ground wells that have a daily pumping capacity of
216,000 gallons. There is sufficient capacity to serve our current customers with room for growth. Water
allocation is measured in a units called Equivalent Residential Unit or “ERU”. Each ERU represents 250
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gallons of water per day. We have sold over 90% of available ERU’s to customers who may be planning
further development in the future. The sale of these ERU’s was also needed to make the system
feasible. The water division does not receive funding from the general fund but is supported by user
fees. Long term planning is essential to provide service required. Well development is a long term
project but one the division is mindful of. Municipal water is an important component in future
development of the community.

Paving Projects

Our paving projects were done in early fall and due to a favorable bid price we were able to accomplish
repaving several roads. We paved from the Interstate 89 overpass on Crosstown Road to the top of the
hill at Hill Street, Addison Drive and Plateau Drive. We participate and apply for the annual grant for
paving that is offered through the Vermont Agency of Transportation. We hope that we can secure the
grant this year and our plans would include paving of Fisher Road.

Friendship Park

The three acre parcel of land on the corner of Rt. 12 and Muzzy Road that was purchased through a
FEMA program in 2014 received its official name this year. “Friendship Park”. This was the name
selected after soliciting for names to call the park. The park opening was; what they might call in the
retail business “a soft opening”. There were still items to be done in the park at the start of the summer
but were completed this fall. The location offers a very peaceful place to enjoy the wildflowers, the
nature walk, or have a picnic. The park was a joint effort between the town and a grant received from
the Community Development Grant-Disaster relief. This was a grant designed to help make a piece of
property that has been identified as not suitable for building into something useful for the community.
The property cannot not be sold to individuals and must be kept in its natural state. Our Town staff
provided “in-kind” contributions that allowed us to receive reimbursement for 100% of the funds
expended. In 2017, the park will be maintained and it is our hope that it sees more use. The contractor is
to provide us with general maintenance for a period of three years and will insure that several of the
plants installed will thrive.

Zoning and Subdivision Regulations:

This project is in its second year and we applaud the hard work done by the members of the Planning
Commission. Input from many citizens, stakeholders and business owners has been appreciated and
considered. The current code was last updated in its entirety in 1989. Zoning regulations were updated
in 2013 into a single unified code. The project will help the code be consistent with Town needs and
state law.

Town Staff Changes:

We welcomed three additions to the Town staff this year, Tim Emmons in the highway department,
Karie Tucker and Dan Withrow as a full time officers in the Police Department.

Volunteers

Currently the Town has one vacancy on the Cemetery Committee and an open position for a citizen
liaison to the Fire Department. Please contact the please contact the Town Administrator, 223-4405
X305 or by email townadministrator@berlinvt.org . A list of current openings are posted on our web site

10 Berlin Annual Report 2016



www.berlinvt.org . We cannot stress how lucky we are to have our volunteers. The community could not
function without volunteers. Thank you all for your commitment and service.

We always are open to hear from you to accept your comments and suggestions. Regular Selectboard
meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month with the exception of a Monday holiday
when the meeting is normally scheduled to the Tuesday following the holiday. Agenda’s and Minutes
are available on our web site, meetings are filmed by Orca Media and broadcast on Comcast Cable
Channel 17.

Respectfully Submitted,

_— .
Ture Melson Brad Towne
Jeremy Hansen - _ Cﬁﬁjﬁ

ey

Selectboard of Berlin

The Town Garage and Municipal Building with the hockey rink portion of the rink visible. Photo by Bill Croney
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Town of Berlin

Comparative Budget Report

General Fund

Account

STATE OF VERMONT
Vt Railroad Levy

Vt Highway-Summer
VT Highway-Winter
VT State Hospital

TOTAL STATE OF
VERMONT

LICENSES & FEES
Animal Licenses

Bev & Entertainment
Copier

Zoning

Town Clerk

Records Restoration
Highway Fines

Excess Weight Permits
Peddler's Permits & Tax
Marriage Licenses

Land Posting Permit
Police/Other

Police - Contract Wages
Grant: Lister Training

Grant: Municipal Planning

Community Block Grant
Misc/Other Revenue

TOTAL LICENSES & FEES
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Budget Actual
FY2016 FY2016
$2,000.00 $4,660.77
$57,000.00 $56,352.63
$57,000.00 $56,352.62
$25,000.00 $25,000.00
$141,000.00 $142,366.02
$2,000.00 $1,286.00
$1,100.00 $1,460.00
$8,000.00 $7,450.50
$16,000.00 $11,200.00
$42,000.00 $35,255.00
$2,500.00 $1,923.00
$0.00 $30.00
$1,000.00 $915.00
$300.00 $300.00
$200.00 $175.00
$100.00 $0.00
$0.00 $594.63
$0.00 $250.00
$0.00 $0.00
$6,615.00 $6,600.00
$0.00 $27,900.00
$0.00 $5,467.14
$79,815.00 $100,806.27

TOWN OF BERLIN — GENERAL LEDGER

Budget Budget
FY2017 FY2018
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$56,500.00 $56,300.00
$56,500.00 $56,300.00
$25,000.00 $25,000.00
$140,000.00 $139,600.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$1,100.00 $1,100.00
$8,000.00 $8,000.00
$7,500.00 $7,500.00
$42,000.00 $32,000.00
$2,500.00 $2,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$1,000.00 $1,000.00
$150.00 $300.00
$200.00 $200.00
$100.00 $50.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$100.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$100.00 $0.00
$64,750.00 $54,150.00
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Account

Property Taxes

Property Taxes

Town Portion: ED TX&L/C
Land Use Change Tax

St of Vt Current Use

GL Reappraisal Revenue
Pilot Revenue

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

INTEREST

Interest Earned Check/Sav
Delinquent Tax Interest
Del Tax Penalties

TOTAL INTEREST

Misc Revenue

Water Pollution Control
Berlin Historical Society
Loan Proceeds

Sale of Assets

TOTAL MISC REVENUE

Police Revenues
Police-Highway Fines
Police-Contract Wages
Police-Other Revenue
Police Insurance Claims
NH 16164-103

NH 16402-103
02140-1115-5103
02140-1415-1003
02140-1415-2002

TOTAL POLICE REVENUES
TOTAL REVENUES
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Budget
FY2016

$2,241,497.00

Actual
FY2016

$2,191,691.90

Budget
FY2017

$2,040,728.00

Budget
FY2018

$2,222,991.00

$0.00 $42,311.48 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $10.00 $0.00 $0.00
$40,000.00 $46,604.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
$13,718.00 $12,750.00 $13,718.00 $12,500.00
$175,000.00 $121,029.70 $166,000.00 $165,000.00
$2,470,215.00 $2,414,397.08 $2,260,446.00 $2,440,491.00
$2,000.00 $2,014.35 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
$17,000.00 $17,626.97 $15,000.00 $17,000.00
$20,000.00 $30,744.38 $18,000.00 $20,000.00
$39,000.00 $50,385.70 $35,000.00 $39,000.00
$4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
$250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00
$0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 $125,000.00
$0.00 $16,788.00 $0.00 $0.00
$4,750.00 $21,538.00 $129,750.00 $129,750.00
$12,000.00 $15,271.52 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
$113,880.00 $118,325.35 $113,880.00 $113,880.00
$1,500.00 $4,570.00 $2,000.00 $3,000.00
$0.00 $3,248.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $6,998.89 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $9,624.15 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $4,206.88 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $2,069.42 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $1,013.92 $0.00 $0.00
$127,380.00 $165,328.13 $127,880.00 $128,880.00

$2,862,160.00 $2,894,821.70

$2,757,826.00

$2,931,871.00
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Town of Berlin

Comparative Budget Report

General Fund

Account

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
ADMINISTRATION
Wages-Clerk

Wages-Asst Clerk
Wages-Treasurer
Wages-Town Administrator
Wages-Asst Town Admin
Wages-Selectboard
Wages-Board of Civil Au
Office Supplies
Clerk/Treas training
Computers/Equipment
Clerk-Copier

Records Restoration
Postage-All Depts.
Postage Meter Rental
Telephone-Office
Clerk/Treas Software Sup
Clerk-Advertising

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION

ASSESSING DEPT
Contract-Assessor
Supplies

Computer Support

Legal Fees

Tax Maps

CAPTAP Fees State License
Computer Expense

TOTAL ASSESSING DEPART
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Budget
FY2016

$42,700.00
$16,678.00
$52,700.00
$61,200.00
$39,600.00
$3,750.00
$500.00
$6,000.00
$1,200.00
$1,350.00
$1,420.00
$2,500.00
$5,500.00
$2,200.00
$4,500.00
$1,000.00
$500.00

Actual
FY2016

$43,048.70
$17,119.75
$53,213.72
$61,689.72
$40,142.39
$3,750.00
$0.00
$7,551.42
$60.00
$0.00
$1,443.69
$0.00
$5,064.44
$544.86
$3,426.46
$0.00
$0.00

Budget
FY2017

$43,981.00
$17,519.00
$53,750.00
$62,425.00
$40,400.00
$3,750.00
$500.00
$8,000.00
$1,200.00
$1,350.00
$1,450.00
$2,500.00
$6,000.00
$750.00
$4,500.00
$1,000.00
$500.00

Budget
FY2018

$45,301.00
$18,045.00
$55,360.00
$64,300.00
$41,600.00
$3,750.00
$500.00
$8,000.00
$1,200.00
$0.00
$1,450.00
$2,500.00
$6,000.00
$750.00
$4,500.00
$1,000.00
$500.00

$243,298.00

$237,055.15

$249,575.00

$254,756.00

$20,000.00 $20,145.00 $20,500.00 $20,750.00
$400.00 $200.00 $400.00 $400.00
$500.00 $238.81 $500.00 $500.00
$500.00 $93.19 $500.00 $500.00
$1,000.00 $4,288.75 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
$0.00 $215.00 $350.00 $600.00
$1,350.00 $1,995.73 $250.00 $250.00
$23,750.00 $27,176.48 $24,000.00 $24,500.00
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Account

TOWN MEETINGS & ELECTIONS

Meet & Elect-Ballots
Wages-Meetings & Elec
Town Reports
Advertising-Notices

TOTAL TOWN MEETINGS

INSURANCES
Workers Comp-General
Health Ins-General
FICA/MEDI Expense
FUTA/SUTA Expense
Disability Ins

Life Ins-General
Health Ins Buy-Back
HDHP-Deductible
Employee Benefits
Pension-General
General Insurance

TOTAL INSURANCES

ZONING

Training
Zoning-Telephone
Zoning-Legal fees
Zoning-Advertising

TOTAL ZONING

DRB

Wages-DRB Sec/PT
DRB-Legal Fees
DRB-Advertising

TOTAL DRB
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Budget Actual Budget Budget

FY2016 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
$3,000.00 $1,774.00 $4,500.00 $3,000.00
$1,000.00 $1,310.40 $2,500.00 $1,300.00
$1,500.00 $1,433.75 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
$500.00 $699.84 $750.00 $500.00
$6,000.00 $5,217.99 $9,250.00 $6,300.00
$1,910.00 $2,006.26 $2,107.00 $2,000.00
$16,762.00 $19,367.64 $20,750.00 $22,440.00
$16,581.00 $17,681.78 $16,700.00 $17,200.00
$651.00 $328.38 $240.00 $20.00
$830.00 $776.42 $780.00 $780.00
$690.00 $689.26 $687.00 $687.00
$4,875.00 $5,062.50 $4,875.00 $4,875.00
$1,000.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $700.00 $700.00
$11,000.00 $11,473.21 $11,400.00 $11,400.00
$13,463.00 $13,992.26 $14,664.00 $17,700.00
$67,762.00 $71,477.71 $72,903.00 $77,802.00
$250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650.00
$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
$500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00
$2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $3,400.00
$4,500.00 $3,402.25 $4,500.00 $3,000.00
$500.00 $4,761.29 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
$1,000.00 $1,176.52 $1,500.00 $1,000.00
$6,000.00 $9,340.06 $8,000.00 $6,000.00
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Account

PLANNING COMMISSION
Supplies-Mileage-Training
Planning-Adverts-Prin
Planning-Planning Comm

TOTAL PLANNING COMM

OTHER BOARDS/COMM
Recreation Board

Grant: Rte 302 Scoping
Conservation Commission
Green Up Day

Emergency Management

TOTAL OTHER BOARDS

CEMETERIES
Maint-Cemeteries

TOTAL CEMETERIES

TAXES & ASSESSMENTS
Animal Control-Constable
County Tax

Ambulance Serv (Both)
Humane Society

Central VT Solid Waste
Cent VT Econ Deve

VLCT Dues

CV Regional Planning

TOTAL TAXES AND ASSESS
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Budget Actual Budget Budget

FY2016 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
$250.00 $160.00 $250.00 $250.00
$500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00
$8,100.00 $7,191.60 $0.00 $1,000.00
$8,850.00 $7,351.60 $750.00 $1,750.00
$3,500.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $7,593.00
$0.00 $2,539.98 $0.00 $0.00
$1,400.00 $0.00 $50.00 $0.00
$500.00 $536.78 $500.00 $500.00
$1,200.00 $1,200.00 $2,087.00 $1,454.00
$6,600.00 $7,776.76 $2,637.00 $9,547.00
$10,000.00 $2,400.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
$10,000.00 $2,400.00 $10,000.00 10,000.00
$2,500.00 $654.46 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
$34,995.00 $34,995.00 $36,826.00 $36,826.00
$75,600.00 $77,265.00 $80,000.00 $90,400.00
$1,800.00 $870.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00
$2,900.00 $2,850.00 $5,700.00 $2,850.00
$500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
$4,064.00 $4,064.00 $4,126.00 $4,271.00
$3,176.00 $3,175.70 $3,176.00 $3,176.00
$125,535.00 $124,374.16 $134,628.00 $141,523.00
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Account

TOWN OFFICIES
Janitorial Services
Supplies
Admin-Training
Copier
Admin-Advert
Newsletter
Admin-Software Sup
Web Page

Cloud Back-Up
Back-Up Storage Fees
Maintenance
Vehicle

Heat & Utilities
Internet

Equipment Contracts

TOTAL TOWN OFFICES

GENERAL EXPENSES
Legal Services

CPA-Audit

Payroll Services

Select Board Minutes
Berlin Pond Survey
Grant Friendship Park
Emergency Generator
Tax Refunds/Abatements
Misc/Other-Gen Exp

TOTAL GENERAL
EXPENSES

POLICE SERVICES

Wages-Police FT
Wages-Police Night Shift
Wages-Police PT
Wages-Police Clerical
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Budget Actual
FY2016 FY2016
$6,500.00 $5,705.46
$3,000.00 $1,141.07
$500.00 $438.00
$1,660.00 $1,681.72
$1,000.00 $1,315.14
$500.00 $0.00
$3,500.00 $5,283.86
$600.00 $0.00
$1,500.00 $1,500.00
$360.00 $137.80
$7,500.00 $9,749.28
$1,000.00 $482.67
$9,600.00 $2,891.18
$1,500.00 $1,436.38
$1,500.00 $1,820.03
$40,220.00 $33,582.59
$20,000.00 $14,543.38
$11,000.00 $16,400.00
$2,000.00 $2,082.55
$2,400.00 $1,990.00
$0.00 $1,957.00
$0.00 $31,000.00
$1,200.00 $1,917.45
$3,000.00 $12,690.99
$1,000.00 $261.53
$40,600.00 $82,842.90
$351,624.00 $275,271.77
$75,041.00 $124,280.82
$22,000.00 $39,581.96
$32,430.00 $32,857.94

Budget Budget
FY2017 FY2018
$7,000.00 $8,000.00
$3,000.00 $3,000.00
$500.00 $500.00
$1,700.00 $1,600.00
$1,000.00 $1,000.00
$500.00 $500.00
$5,000.00 $6,000.00
$600.00 $600.00
$1,500.00 $1,500.00
$360.00 $360.00
$10,000.00 $10,000.00
$1,500.00 $1,500.00
$9,600.00 $9,600.00
$1,000.00 $1,700.00
$1,500.00 $1,500.00
$44,760.00 $47,360.00
$20,000.00 $20,000.00
$15,000.00 $16,000.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$2,400.00 $2,400.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$1,500.00 $2,000.00
$5,000.00 $5,000.00
$1,000.00 $1,000.00
$46,900.00 $48,400.00
$267,220.00 $290,461.00
$171,963.00 $170,537.00
$22,000.00 $22,000.00
$33,656.00 $40,000.00
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Account

Wages-Police CVMC
Wages-Police OT
Wages-Police On Call
Wages - Police Education
Wages - Police Longevity
Workers Comp-Police
Health Ins-Police
FICA/MEDI Exp-Police
FUTA/SUTA-Police
FICA/MEDI/CVMC
Disability Ins

Life Ins-Police

Health Ins Buy-Back-Police
HDHP-Deductible
Employee Benefits-PD
Pension-Police

Veh & Liab Ins-Police
Supplies-Police
Uniforms-PD
Guns/Ammo

Copier Lease-PD
Police-Equipment Radios
VIBRS-Dbase-PD
Media/Data Exp
Advertising-PD
Training-Police
Telephone-Police
Legal-Police

Equip Maint-Police
Gas/Qil-Police
Lodging/Prisoners-Police
Wages-PD Grant
FICA/Grant
02140-1415-2002
Special Investigative Unit
Other/Mis Exp-Police
Berlin Community Fund

TOTAL POLICE SERVICES
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Budget
FY2016

$87,360.00
$12,853.00
$3,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$38,805.00
$91,017.00
$47,304.00
$1,193.00
$6,680.00
$2,170.00
$1,765.00
$4,875.00
$8,000.00
$960.00
$32,283.00
$25,850.00
$4,600.00
$5,500.00
$1,100.00
$1,550.00
$0.00
$4,100.00
$4,500.00
$200.00
$1,700.00
$6,900.00
$2,000.00
$12,000.00
$18,500.00
$1,100.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$2,800.00
$0.00

Actual
FY2016

$76,660.00
$22,016.51
$4,240.32
$0.00
$0.00
$42,318.70
$70,737.68
$39,318.89
$3,092.71
$6,071.82
$1,929.95
$1,654.32
$10,478.33
$0.00
$700.00
$30,108.55
$26,763.76
$937.96
$10,144.01
$1,208.28
$1,247.85
$0.00
$4,404.97
$4,971.89
$0.00
$1,879.78
$7,873.73
$0.00
$11,674.73
$13,719.76
$800.00
$17,886.19
$1,358.86
$1,000.96
$0.00
$3,073.72
$1,110.41

$911,760.00

$891,377.13

Budget Budget

FY2017 FY2018
$87,360.00 $87,360.00
$15,000.00 $15,000.00
$4,350.00 $6,000.00
$0.00 $900.00
$0.00 $500.00
$51,574.00 $60,300.00
$86,900.00 $100,500.00
$46,100.00 $38,800.00
$349.00 $480.00
$6,700.00 $6,700.00
$2,500.00 $2,500.00
$2,025.00 $2,025.00
$9,750.00 $10,075.00
$0.00 $0.00
$3,150.00 $4,500.00
$29,900.00 $33,700.00
$27,762.00 $31,300.00
$4,500.00 $4,500.00
$6,000.00 $8,000.00
$1,500.00 $1,500.00
$1,524.00 $1,550.00
$0.00 $6,200.00
$5,100.00 $5,100.00
$4,500.00 $4,500.00
$200.00 $200.00
$2,500.00 $2,500.00
$6,900.00 $8,500.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00
$13,425.00 $13,000.00
$16,000.00 $14,000.00
$1,000.00 $1,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$2,300.00 $2,300.00
$2,800.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$938,508.00 $998,488.00
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Mun. Boundary Signs

HIGHWAYS

SUMMER ROADS
Wages-Summer Roads
Wages-Summer OT
Roadside Mowing/Tree
Trim

Chloride-Summer Rds
Culvert/Materials
Summer Eg-
Maint/Repairs

Eq Fuel-Summer
Leased Hwy Equipment
Highway Equip- Radios

TOTAL SUMMER ROADS

WINTER ROADS
Wages-Winter Roads
Wages-Winter OT
Sand-Winter Roads
Salt-Winter Roads
Winter-Eg-Maint/Repairs
Eq Fuel-Winter

TOTAL WINTER ROADS

HIGHWAY GENERAL
Asphalt/Marking/Sealing
Resurface/Gravel

Bridge Maint

Road Signs

Guard Rails

TOTAL HIGHWAY
GENERAL
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Budget Actual

FY2016 FY2016
$90,028.00 $92,593.49
$1,000.00 $1,291.39
$7,000.00 $5,550.00
$28,000.00 $24,882.20
$10,000.00 $9,069.00
$26,000.00 $22,125.73
$23,000.00 $10,987.99
$45,012.00 $14,066.48
$0.00 $0.00
$230,040.00 $180,566.28
$92,428.00 $79,768.75
$30,313.00 $12,863.25
$60,000.00 $49,421.25
$70,000.00 $51,369.04
$35,000.00 $37,480.95
$37,000.00 $13,851.20
$324,741.00 $244,754.44
$140,000.00 $122,993.12
$117,000.00 $130,006.32
$10,000.00 $212.92
$4,000.00 $3,144.80
$8,000.00 $10,520.00

$279,000.00

$266,877.16

Budget Budget
FY2017 FY2018
$2,000.00

$89,220.00 $91,000.00
$835.00 $835.00
$7,000.00 $10,000.00
$28,000.00 $28,000.00
$10,000.00 $10,000.00
$26,000.00 $26,000.00
$20,000.00 $20,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $10,000.00
$181,055.00 $195,835.00
$91,620.00 $93,100.00
$28,000.00 $28,000.00
$60,000.00 $60,000.00
$70,000.00 $70,000.00
$35,000.00 $35,000.00
$30,000.00 $30,000.00

$314,620.00

$316,100.00

$150,000.00 $150,000.00
$117,000.00 $130,000.00
$10,000.00 $10,000.00
$4,000.00 $4,000.00
$12,000.00 $12,000.00
$293,000.00 $306,000.00
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Account

HIGHWAY OTHER
Workers Comp-Highway
Health Ins.-Highway
FICA/MEDI Exp-Highway
FUTA/SUTA-Highway
Disability Ins

Life Ins.-Highway

Health Ins Buy-Back-Hwy
HDHP-Deductible
Employee Benefits
Pension-Highway
General Ins-Highway
Storm water-State Permit
Erosion Control
Supplies
Advertising-Hwy
Training-Highway
Telephone-Highway
Garage Maint/Utils
Garage-Energy Improve
Trash Removal-Highway
Street Lights

Traffic Lights

Misc-Hwy

Uniforms

TOTAL HIGHWAY OTHER

TOTAL HIGHWAYS

TOTAL GENERAL
GOVERNMENT
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Budget Actual

FY2016 FY2016
$32,954.00 $33,509.54
$27,937.00 $39,896.26
$16,353.00 $14,501.76
$402.00 $207.71
$845.00 $759.84
$790.00 $816.12
$4,875.00 $5,062.50
$2,400.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$11,651.00 $10,287.82
$11,160.00 $11,183.51
$0.00 $2,766.40
$4,000.00 $4,112.37
$4,000.00 -$900.55
$500.00 $709.70
$500.00 $60.00
$1,300.00 $2,707.30
$18,000.00 $12,371.44
$5,000.00 $1,108.00
$1,285.00 $134.00
$10,000.00 $8,053.08
$2,000.00 $2,016.73
$0.00 $0.00
$6,200.00 $6,010.93

$162,152.00 $155,374.46

$995,933.00

$2,489,058.00

Budget Budget

FY2017 FY2018
$39,802.00 $38,400.00
$40,450.00 $43,800.00
$16,100.00 $16,500.00
$186.00 $60.00
$920.00 $920.00
$800.00 $800.00
$4,875.00 $4,875.00
$0.00 $0.00
$1,400.00 $1,400.00
$11,900.00 $11,900.00
$10,780.00 $12,000.00
$300.00 $300.00
$4,000.00 $5,000.00
$5,000.00 $6,000.00
$500.00 $500.00
$500.00 $500.00
$2,500.00 $2,550.00
$18,000.00 $18,000.00
$5,000.00 $5,000.00
$1,285.00 $1,300.00
$10,500.00 $10,500.00
$3,000.00 $3,000.00
$500.00 $500.00
$6,200.00 $6,200.00

$184,498.00 $190,005.00

$847,572.34

$973,173.00

$1,007,940.00

$2,347,544.87

$2,519,834.00

$2,637,766.00
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CAPITAL BUDGET
Capital Budget
Highway Equipment
Police Equipment

Debt Serv:06 Bond Prin
Debt Serv:06 Bond Int
Debt Serv: 15 loan
Debt Serv: 15 Int

Debt Serv: 16 Loan
Debt Serv: 16 Int

TOTAL CAPITAL BUDGET

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

* Includes appropriations
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Budget
FY2016

$10,000.00
$45,000.00
$35,000.00
$10,000.00
$4,490.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Actual
FY2016

$0.00
$45,064.50
$34,049.81
$10,000.00
$3,342.65
$22,351.48
$1,530.64
$0.00
$0.00

Budget
FY2017

$0.00
$165,000.00
$35,000.00
$10,000.00
$4,490.00
$21,902.00
$1,600.00
$0.00

$0.00

Budget
FY2018

$0.00
$200,000.00
$35,000.00
$10,000.00
$4,490.00
$22,800.00
$1,115.00
$19,300.00
$1,400.00

$104,490.00

$116,339.08

$237,992.00

$294,105.00

$2,593,548.00

2739732.95*

$2,757,826.00

$2,931,871.00
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Selectboard

Town of Berlin

Berlin, Vermont

Report om the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, cach major fund, and the aggrepate remaining fund information of the Town of Berlin, Vermont, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related netes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Anditor’s Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmeni Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material missiatement,

Am audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s jodgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial ststements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s inlernal control, Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Orpinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the apgregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Berlin, Vermont, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
{inancial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budpetary comparison for the

General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America,

143 Bargr STREET = MONTPELIER » VERMONT 053602 = B02-223-6261 «Fax; 802-223-1550 » www.{sv-cpas.com
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Other-Matters
Requived Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepled in the United Stales of America require that management’s discussion
and analysis and the schedules of Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability and Town contributions
in Schedule 3 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisied of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and cther knowledge we obtained during cur andit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements {Schedules 1 and 2) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statemenis.

Schedules 1 gnd 2 are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the awdit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the wnderlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, Schedules ! and 2 are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
io the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governmeni Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued cur report dated January 6, 2017 on
our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant apreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance, That report 15 an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audifing
Standards in considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,
o tagat Sk § Vbl CLF
FOTHERGILL SEGALE & VALLEY, CPAs

Montpelier, Vermont
Vermont Public Accountancy License #110

lanuary &, 2017
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Chur discussion and analysis of the Town of Berlin, Vermont's financial performance provides an
overview of the Town’s financial activities for the vear ended June 30, 2016. Please read it in
conjunction with the Town's financial statements which begin on page 10,

Financial Highlights

Government-Wide Statemenis
e Met position of our governmental activities increased by 5164,262 or about 6%. The net
position of our business-type activities increased by $1,723,90] or more than 100%.

s The cost of all of the Town’s programs was $3,370,66% in fiscal year 2016, compared to
§3,293 245 in fiscal vear 20135, with no new programs added this year,

Fund Statements
* The General Fund reported an increase in fund balance this year of $155,089, which was
5155,089 better than what was budgeted. This compares to a $171,773 increase in fiscal year
2015,

»  The restricted fund balance was $173,738 and 15 restricted for lister training, reappraisal and
record restoration, The committed fund balance of $83,260 is for the items noted in Note 10.
The assigned fund balance of $29,501 is for compulter equipment, capital budget and highway
pavingfires. The nonspendable fund balance of $239,021 consists of $35,484 of prepaids,
£59 804 of highway inventory and the $143,733 note due from the Water Fund.

o The nonmajor funds, as a whole, reported a net increase in fund balance this year of §5,398,
compared to an increase of $9,688 in fiscal vear 2015. This brings the combined fund balance
from §136,670 to $162,068.

» The Cemetery Funds reported an increase in fund balance this year of §7 from a balanee of
$13,955 to §13,962.

s The Water Pollution Fund reported an increase in net position of $23,724 in fiscal year 2016,
compared to an increase of $10.419 in fiscal year 2015, resulting in an ending net position of
§1,612,500.

» The Water Division Fund reported an increase in net position of $1,700,177 in fiscal year 2016,
compared to an increase of $400 in fiscal year 2015, resulting in an ending net position of
$1,700,577.

Using This Annual Report

This anral report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Staternent of Activities (Exhibits A and B) provide information about the activities of the Town as a
whole and present a longer-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund financial statements start on
Exhibit C. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were finaniced in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the
Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about
the Town's most significant funds.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR EMDED IUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

Reporting the Town as a Whole

Ome of the most important questions asked about the Town's finances is, “Is the Town as a whaole
better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities? The Statement of Met Position and the
Statemnent of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way
ihat helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of
ihe current year's revenues and expenses are taken inte account regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the Town's net position and change in net position. You can think of the
Town's net position — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the Town's
financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net position is
one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider
other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the
condition of the Town's roads, to assess the overall financial health of the Town.

In the Statement of MNet Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into two kinds of
activities:

* (overnmental activities — The Town's basic services are reported in the General Fund,
including the highway department, general administration, and police. Property tasxes, charges
for services and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

s  Business-type activities — The Town charges a fee to customers (o help it cover all or most of
the: cost of certain services it provides. The Town™s water pollution and water division are
reported here,

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds

Char analysis of the Town’s major funds begins on Exhibit C and provides detailed information about
the most significant funds — not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by
State law and by bond covenants. The Town's three categories of funds — governmental, proprietary
and fduciary — use different accounting approaches.

» Governmental fund — The Town's basic services are reported in the governmental fund, which
focuses on how money flows into and out of that fund and the balance left at year-end that is
available for spending. This fund is reported using a measurement focus called current
financial resources, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
Town’s peneral government operations and the basic services it provides, Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near fiture lo finance the Town's programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Met Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in Exhibits I and F that are included in the
financial statements.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

+ Proprietary fund - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides — whether to
outside customers or to other funds of the Town — these services are generally reported in a
proprietary fund. A proprietary fund is reported in the same way that all business-type
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact,
the Town's enterprise funds (a type of proprietary fund) are the same as the business-type
activities reported in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional
information, such as the statement of cash flows.

s Fiduciary fund —Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of other
parties, Fiduciary activity is not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town's own programs. The
Town's fiduciary fund consists of the Cemetery Funds.

The Town as a Whaole

The Town's combined net position increased by 51,888,163 from a vear ago — increasing from a
restated balance of $4,397,091 to $6,285,254. Net position for the governmental activities was
increased from a restated balance of $2,807,909 to $2,972,171. The governmental activities prior year
balances were restated to reduce capital assets and net position invested in capital assets by $170,721
1o account for impairment loss on the FEMA buyout property obtained. Our analysis below focuses on
the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Town's governmental and
business-type activities,

Table 1
Met Position
Governmenial Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Restated Restated
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Currem amd olher asseds L7025 0% LZESS5IR B 1449989 5 TEIA4I1 5 2987014 3 2,072,929
Capital assets, net of depe 1,920,203 1,054,004 6,380,752 3,305,679 8,301 (45 5,259,683
Total asseis 3437318 3,243,522 7,830,741 4 080,000 11,268 059 7332612
Total deferred outflows
of resources 158,365 44,865 1] ] 158,365 44,865
Long-term liabilities 07,270 258,257 4,086,215 1,502,556 4,243 48% 2,160,813
el pension biability 231,207 23.7% 0 0 231,207 23,756
Other liabilities 185,035 125212 481,443 597,352 G, 478 T2 564
Total liabilities 523,512 407,225 4,517,658 2,459,508 5,141,170 2,907,133
Total deferred Inflows
aof resounces L] 73,253 0 0 1] 73,253
Mel position:
Invesied in capital assess,
oet of debt 1,739,492 1,727,310 2,140,283 1,280,976 470,778 3,008,286
Restricied 286,846 397,211 0 0 286,846 197,211
Unrestricied 945,835 683,388 1,172 80D 308,206 2,118,633 997,504
Total net position 2 17 § 1807900 § 3,313,083 § 1,589,082 5 6285254 3 4.397,091

Met position of the Town’s governmental activities increased by about 6% in fiscal year 2016
(52,972,171 compared to a restated balance of $§2,807,909). Unrestricted net position — the part of net
position that can be used 1o finance day-lo-day operations without constraints established by debt
covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements — increased from $683,388 to $945,833 in
fiscal year 2016. Restricted net position decreased from $397.211 to $286,846 in fiscal year 2016,

-5-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

The net position of our business-lype activities increased by 51,723,901 in fiscal year 2016
($3,313,083 compared to $1,589,182). The large increase is mostly due to $1,702,176 grant revenue
nsed for capital improvements in the Water Divizion Fund.

Table 2
Changes in Met Position
Governmental Actjvities Business-Tyvpa Activities
Restated
2016 1015 Change 014 13 Change
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charpes for services £ 0212212 % 2082 5 (196600 & 634608 % 541,733 5 92870
Oiperating grants and
contributions 237,615 243,786 (6,171} 0 0 0
Capital grants and
contributions 27,500 184,121 {136,221} 1,702,176 0 1,702,176
General revenues:
Propesty taxcs 2,362,240 2,347,935 14,305 0 0 o
Intersstipenalty on del. taxes 48,371 47 163 508 5,139 635 4,504
Invesiment income 2,067 34 2,028 711 11,083 {1,372)
Gain on sale of assets 16,788 1] 16,788 0 0 4]
Tinpainnent loss g (170,721} 1700, 721 { ] 4]
Total revenues 2,907,203 2,884,005 23108 2,351 629 553,451 1,798,178
PROGRAM EXPENSES
General government 680,373 609,638 70,737 ] o 0
Highway 249,710 058,830 {109,129} 0 0 0
Police 031,610 000,028 2] 682 ] ] 0
Appropriations 275,849 265,020 10,829 0 0 0
Interest on debt 5,390 7,190 {1,791) 0 0 0
Water pollution 0 ] 0 538,316 542,632 (4,316
Water division 0 ] il 25,412 0 89412
Total program expenses 2,742,941 2,750,613 (7.672) 527,728 542,632 85,006

CHANGE IN NETPOSITION § 164262 3 134,292 5 29970 §1,723900 & 10819 $1,713,082

Governmental Activities

The increase in net position for governmental activities was §164,262 in fiscal year 2016, compared to
a restaled increase of $134,292 in fiscal year 2015

The cost of all povernmental activities this year was $2,742,241. However, as shown in the Statement
of Activities on Exhibit B, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities
through Town taxes was only $2,265,204 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly
benefited from the programs ($212,222) or by other governments and organizations that subsidized
certain programs with grants and contributions ($2635,515).

There was a decreass in capital grants and contributions due to not recelving FEMA buyout funds as
was done in fiscal year 2015,

o
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

Business-Type Activities

The net position for business type activities increased by $1,723,901 in fiscal year 2016, due to the
grant received for the water system project that was almost completed by year end.

The cost of all business-type activities this year was $627,728. However, these costs were fully
covered by those who directly benefited from the programs {$634,603) and by other governments and
organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions ($1,702,176).

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the Town's three largest programs — general government, highway,
and police — as well as cach program’s net cost (total cost less program revenues). The net cost shows
the financial burden that was placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Tahle 3
Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Met Cost of Services

2016 IS 2016 2015
General government § 680,373 % 609,636 $ 431,515 5 2724358
Highway 849,710 058,839 737,005 846,053
Police 931,610 909,928 T6ES 434 748,203
All others 281,248 272,210 281,248 272,210
Totals $2,742,94] $2,750,613 $2,265,204  $2.090,824

The Town’s Funds

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the Balance Sheet on Exhibit
C) reported a combined fund balance of $1,221,671, which is greater than last year's total fund balance
of §1,061,184. Included in this year’s total increase in fund balance of $160,487 was an increase of
$155,089 in the General Fund and an increase of 5,398 in the nonmajor governmental funds.

General Fund Budpetary Highlights

The Town's General Fund’s activity compared to budget is reported on Exhibit G, Some of the larger
varances were as follows:

Favorable
Budgel Actual (Untavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes £ 2423734 § 2355043 F (68,691)
State of Vermont 213,333 247,506 34,173
Other 4,750 32,650 27.900
Expenditures:
Winter roads 324,741 244 754 79,987

Tax revenue was lower than budget due mostly to PILOT funds not being received for the State
psychiatric hospital which was not completed in the timeframe that was expected, State of Vermont
revenue was grealer than budget due to having received unbudgeted Public Safety grants. Other
revenue was greater than budget due to the sale of two trucks and receipt of a grant for Friendship
Park. Winter roads were under budget due to the mild winter weather in fiscal year 2016,

-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2016, the Town had $8,301,045 invested 1n a broad range of capital assets, including land,
buildings and improvements, vehicles, infrastructure, plant, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. (See Table 4 below) This amount represents a net
increase (including additions and deductions) of £3,041,362.

Tahle 4
Capital Assets at Year-End
(Met of Accurnulated Depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
Restated Restated
2016 20135 2016 2015 2016 2015
Land b 52400 5 52400 F 106,000 % 106,000 3 [agA00 5 158,400
Construction in progress 63,458 32,458 5,616,450 2,542 625 5,679,208 2,575,083
Plant o i 651,303 646,555 631,303 646,555
Buildings and impr. 179,897 189,481 ] 0 175,857 180,401
Infrastructure 1,154,453 1,103,388 ] 0 1,154,453 1,103,388
Machinery and equip. 30,229 37,859 6,000 10,499 17,228 48,358
Wehicles 4349 856 538 408 0 0 439856 538,408
Totals § 1020293 § 1954004 & 6380752 § 3305670 & R301045 § 5250683

This year's major additions {or governmental activities were Partridge Farm Road paving, work on
Friendship Park, and two new vehicles. The major additions to the business-type activities were work
done on the Barre-Montpelier Road water pollution line and the new water system,

Debr Administration

At June 30, 2016, the Town had $4,217,016 in notes, lease and bonds cutstanding versus $2,251.397
an June 30, 2015 - an increase of 1,965,619 — as shown in Table 5.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt at Year-End

Governmental — Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Balance - June 30, 2013 3 226,694 52,024,703 $2.251,397
Proceeds 0 6,318,619 6,318,619
Principal payments (45,893) (4,307,107) (4,353,000
Balance - June 30, 2016 S 180,801 $4,006,215 4217016

Proceeds received in fiscal year 2016 were for the water supply project,

-B-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VEEMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
{Contined)

Economic Factors and Next Year®s Budgets and Rates

When adopting the budpet for the fiscal year 2017 year, the Selectboard based their figures on previous
year spending and departmental budget requests. The tax rate is set based on the voter approved
budget amount for taxes divided by the Grand List.

Contacting the Town's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for

the money it receives. 1T vou have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the Town Treasurer at Town of Berlin, 108 Shed Road, Berlin, Vermont 05602,

Berlin Annual Report 2016
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Exhibit A

TOWHN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
Governmental Business-type
Activilies Adctivities Taotal
ASSETS
Cesh b3 979167 5 549,745 3 1,828912
Accounts receivable - State 5.9%94 1] 8,994
Accounts receivable - other, net of allowance 48,089 24,387 T2.476
Linbiiled usger fees 0 316,880 316,880
Grant receivable - USDA i 258977 238977
Taxes, interest and penalty receivable, net of allowance 137,242 0 137,242
Internal halances 248 245 (248,245) o
Prepaid expenses 35,484 1] 35,484
Irvventory 50,804 0 39,804
Capital Assets
Land 32,400 106,000 158,400
Construction in process 63,458 5.616,450 5,679,904
Other capital essets, {net of
accumulated depreciation} 1,804,435 058,302 2462 737
Total assets ER YL 7.582 406 11,019,814
DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 158,365 1] 138,365
Total asssts and delerred outllows of resources 3,595,683 7,582 406 11,178,178
LIABILITIES
Accounts peyable 130,397 18,050 148,447
Construction and relainage payvable 0 204 254 204,254
Agcrued interest payable 0 10,594 10,894
Accrued payrol] and benelits payable 15,717 0 15,717
Prepaid property taxes 38,921 0 38,871
Accrued compensaled absences 26,460 (] 26,465
Bonds and notes payahle doe within one year 312,314 108,473 140,787
et pension Hability 231,207 0 231,207
Bonds and notes payable due after one year 148,487 3,527,742 4,076,225
Total liabilities 623,512 __ 4369413 4,892,515
ET POSITION
Irivested 1n capital asseis, net of related debt 1,730 402 2140283 3,879,775
Restricted 286,846 0 286,546
Unrestricied 945,833 1,172,800 2,118,633
Total net position 3 2972171 § 3313083 3 6,285,254

See Motes to Financial Statements.

~J0=
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EXHIBIT C

TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
Monmajor
Funds
M.ajm‘ Fund Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents &  BT0,987 £ 108,180 £ 970,187
Taxes, mterest and penalty recervable, net of allowance 137,242 ] 137,242
Accounts receivable - State 5,994 ] £,994
Accounts receivable - other 48,089 0 48,089
Prepaid expenses 35,484 ] 15,484
Inventory 59,504 Q 59,804
Advances to other funds 143,733 1 143,733
Duse from other funds 50,624 5%,8R8 104,512
Total assets ¥ 1,354,957 £ 162,068 § 1,517,025
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Lialilities
Accounts payable b 130,397 % ] $ 130,397
Accrued wages & taxes 15,717 0 15717
Property tax overpayments 38,921 0 _ 38,921
Total liabilities 185,035 0 185,035
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 110,319 1] 110,319
Fund Balances
Menspendable:
Prepaids 35,484 0 35,484
Inventory 50,804 1} 59,804
Addvances to other funds 143,733 o 143,733
Restricted 173,738 113,108 286,846
Commilted 83,260 48,960 132,220
Azzipned 29,501 0 29,501
Unassigned 534,083 ] __ 534,083
Total fund balances 1,059,603 162,068 1,221,671
Tatal liahilities, deferred inflows of
resourees and fund balances § 1.354957 $ 162,068 § 1,517,025

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIEIT D
TOWHN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
RECOMCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FLUINDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS P 1221671

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements. 1,920,293

Unavailable revenue for property taxes is recognized on an accrual
basis in the statement of net position, not for the modified cash basis. 110,319

Some liabilities, inclading net pension obligations, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
povernmental fimds:
Met pension liability {(231,207)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds 158,365

Lonp-terrn Habilities, including notes payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
as liabilities in the fund statements. Long-term liabilities at
year end consist oft

Bond and notes payable (180,801)

Accrued compensated absences (26,469)
TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 52,972,171
Ser Motes to Financial Statements., -13-
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EXHIBIT E
TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHAMNGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERMNMENTAL FUNDS

36

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Major Fund Dither
ﬁme&ﬂ Govemmental
Revenues Fund Funds Totals
Property taxes § 2,355,043 L 0 $ 2,355,043
Delinguent tax penalties & interest 48371 0 4531
Licenses, fees & permits 66,307 1] 66,307
Interest income 2,014 53 2,067
Intergovernmental 247,506 1] 247,506
Charges for services - police 126,143 0 126,143
Other 32,650 5,131 37,781
Total revenues 2,878,034 5,184 2883218
Expenditures
Current:
General government 574,006 3,786 ST1.382
Highways 710,511 {¥] 710,511
Police 891,377 o R91,377
Approprations 275,849 0 275,849
Total current 2.451,833 3,286 2,455,119
Db servioe:
Principal 45,893 i 45,803
Interest 5,399 0 5,399
Total debt service 51,292 0 51297
Capital outlays;
Cieneral government 31,000 0 31.000
Highways 168,058 0 168,058
Police 34,050 0 34,050
Total capital outlays 233,108 1] 233,108
Total expenditures 2,736,233 3,286 2,739,519
Excess Revenues (Expenditures) 141,801 1,898 143,699
Orther Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of assets 16,788 ] 16,788
Transfers in ] 3,500 3,500
Transfers out {3,500) 1] (3,500)
Total other financing sources (uses) 13,288 3,300 16,788
Met Change in Fund Balances 155,089 5398 160,487
Fund Balances - July 1, 2015 G0a,514 | 56,670 1,061,184
Fund Balances - June 30, 2016 51,059,603 § 162,068 £ 1,221,671
See Motes to Financial Statements, -14 -
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT

EXHIBIT F

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE [N FUND BALANCES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reparted for povernmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Some revenues are not collected for several months after the Town's
year end; they are not considered "available" revenue in the fund statements.

Unavailable property taxes increased by 57,197,

Repayment of notes, bonds and lease principal is an expenditure in the povernmental

funds; but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditores. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits camed, net of
emplayee contributions, 15 reported as pension expense:

Town pension contributions
Cost of benefits earned, net of employes contributions

In the statement of activities, accrued compensated absences are measured by
the amounts incurred during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for thege items are measured by the amount of Gnancial
resources used (essentially the amounts actually paid). This year compensated
ahsences paid was more than what was eamed hy 55,094,

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost ($233,108) of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense (F266,819), This is the amount
by which depreciation was greater than capital outlays in the current pericd.

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See Notes to Financial Statements. -15-
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45,893

46,316

(67,024) (20,698)

5,004

(33,711)
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Original Varance
and Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes ¥ 2,248,734 § 2234013 5 o(14720)
PILOT 175,000 121,030 (53.970)
Total taxes 2,423,734 2,355,043 (68,691)
State of Vermont
Current use 40,000 46,604 6,604
Highways 114,000 112,705 (1,295)
State hospital 25,000 25,004 i
Appraizal assistance 13,718 12,750 (968)
Railroad levy 2,000 4,661 2,661
Municipal planning G,613 &, 6000 {15)
Folice - highway fines 12,000 15,272 3,272
Puhblic safety grants i 23,914 231,914
Total State of Vermont 213,333 247,506 34,1
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Animal licenses 2,000 1,286 (7T14)
Beverage and entertainment licenses 1,100 1,460 a0
Copier fees 8,000 T.450 (550
Foning fees 16,000 11,201 (4.799)
Town Clerk fees 42,000 35,255 (6,743)
Records restoration 2,500 1,923 {377
Excess weight permits 1,000 215 (85}
Peddlers' permits 300 300 0
Marriage licenses 200 175 {25)
Land posting permits 100 0 (100)
Police other 0 H435 845
Other miscellaneous 0 5,497 5,497
Tital fees, licenses and permits 73,200 66,307 {6,893
Police
Contract wages 113,880 118,325 4,445
Other miscellaneous 1,500 7,818 6,318
Total police 115,380 126,143 10,763
Interest and Penalties
Investment income 2,004 2,014 14
Interest on delinquent taxes 17,000 17,627 627
Penalties on delinquent taxes 20,000 30,744 10,744
Total interest and penalties i 0,385 11,385
Oiher Revenues
Water pollution eontrol 4,500 4,500 ]
Berlin Historical Society 250 250 0
Friendship Park gramt 0 27,900 27,900
Total other revenues 4. 750 32,650 27,5900
Total revenues 2,869,397 2,878,034 8.637

See Motes to Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
EXPEMDITURES
General Government
Admimstration
Town Clerk 42,700 43,049 (349)
Town Treasurer 52,700 53,214 (3140
Assistant Clerk 16,678 17,120 (442
Selectboard 3,750 3,750 0
Assistant Town Administrator 30,600 40,142 (342)
Town Administrator 61,200 61,690 {490)
Board of Civil Authority S00 ] 500
Office supplies 6,000 7,551 (1,551)
Training 1,200 G0 1,140
Computers and equipment 1,350 0 1,350
Copier 1,420 1,444 (24)
Records restoration 2,500 ] 2,500
Postage 3,500 5,064 436
Postage meter rental 2,200 545 1,655
Telephone 4,500 3,426 1,074
Software and support 1,000 0 1,000
Clerk - advertising S00 1] 500
Total administration 243 398 237,055 6,243
Listers
Contract - assessor 20,000 20,145 {145
Supplics LT 200 200
Software and support 5040 239 261
Tax maps 1,000 4,289 (3,289)
License i} 215 (215)
Computer 1.350 1,996 {Ga0)
Legal 300 93 407
Total listers 23,730 27077 {3,427
Meetings and Elections
Town meetings and elections 4 (0 3,084 Q16
Town reports 1,500 1,434 66
Legal notices and advertising 500 700 (200}
Total meetings and elections 6,000 3,218 782
Insurance
Waorkers' compensation 1,910 2,006 (96)
Health insurance 16,762 19,368 {2.606)
Social Security 16,581 17,682 {1,101)
Unemployment 631 328 323
Drizability Rao T 53
Life insurance Ho0 689 1
Health insurance buyback 4,875 5,063 (188}
Hee MNotes to Financial Statements. -17-

Berlin Annual Report 2016



40

TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGE [N
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Insurance (continued)
Deductible 1,000 10+ Q00
Pension 11,000 11,473 (473)
General insurance 13,463 13,992 {329
Total insurance 67,762 71,478 {3,716)
Zoning
Training 250 i} 250
Advertising 00 [V} 500
Lepal fees 2,000 [V} 2,000
Total zoning 2,750 1] 2,750
Development Review Board
Secretary 4,500 3,402 1,098
Legal fees 00 4,761 (4,261
Advertising 1,000 1,177 {177
Total development review board 6,000 9,340 (33400
Planning
Supplies, mileage and training 250 160 )
Advertising and printing 00 0 500
Consultant 8,100 7,192 208
Total planning &850 7.352 1,498
Other
Cemeteries 30,000 2,400 7,600
Conservation Commission 1,400 0 1,400
Green Up Day 500 537 amn
Emergency management commission 1,200 1,200 0
Total other 13,100 4,137 8,963
Taxes and Asscssments
Animal control officer 2,500 654 1. 846
Washington county assessment 34,995 34,995 ']
Ambulance service 75,600 77,265 {1,665)
Central Vermont Humane Society 1,800 870 930
Central Vermont Solid Waste Mgmt District 2,900 2,850 50
Central Vermont Economic Development 500 500 0
Vermont League of Cities and Towns 4,064 4,064 0
Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 3,176 3,176 0
Total 1xes and assessments 125,535 124,374 1,161

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 18-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE N
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Budget Artual {Unfavorable)
Town Office
Janitorial 6,300 3,706 794
Supplies 3,000 1,141 1,859
Training 500 438 62
Copier 1,660 1,682 (22
Advertising 1,000 1,315 {315)
Hewsletter 500 0 500
Software and support 3,500 5,284 (1,784)
Web page G600 0 600
Cloud backup 1,500 1,500 0
Backup storage fees 360 138 222
Maintenance 7,500 9,744 (2.245)
Vehicle 1,000 483 517
Heat and utilities 9,600 2891 6,702
Internet 1,500 1,436 L
Equipment contracts 1,500 1,820 (320}
Total town office 40,220 33,583 6,637
General
Legal 20,000 14,543 3,457
Auditing and accounting 11,000 16,400 (5,400)
Payroll services 2,000 2,083 (83)
Selectboard minutes 2,400 1,990 410
Berlin Pond survey 0 1,957 (1,957)
Bike/pedestrian scoping study ] 2,540 (2,540)
Emerpency generator 1,200 1,917 (717
Tax refunds and abatements 3,000 12,691 (2,691)
Miscellaneous 1,000 261 739
Total general 40,600 54,382 (13,782)
Total general government 577,865 574,006 3,769
Police
Wapges 351,624 275272 76,352
Wages - night shifi 75,041 124,281 {49,240)
Wages - parl time 22,000 39,382 (17,582)
Wages - clerical 32,430 32,858 (428)
Wages - CVMC 87,360 76,660 10,700
Wapges - overtime 12,353 22,017 (9, 164)
Wages - on call 3,000 4,240 (1.240)
Workers' compensation 38,805 42,319 (3,514)
Bealth insurance 91,017 70,738 20,279
Social Security 47,304 39319 7,985
Unemployment 1,193 3,093 {1,500
Social Security - CVMC 6,680 6,072 G08
See Motes to Financial Statements. -19-
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Police (continued)

Disability insurance

Life insurance

Health insurance buyback
Deductible

Employee benefits
Pension

Wehicle and liability insurance

Supplies

Uniforms

Guns and ammo

Copier lease

VIBRS

Media and data

Advertising

Training

Telephone

Legal

Equipment maintenance

Wehicle fuel

Lodging prisoners

Policing grants

Other

Berlin Community Fund
Total police

Highways

Summer roads

Wages
Roadside mowing
Chiloride
Culveris and materials
Equipment mainlenance
Fuel

Total summer roads

Winter roads
Wapges
Sand
Salt
Equipment maintenance
Fuel

TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVEMUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN
FIIND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Criginal YVariance
and Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
2,170 1,930 240
1,765 1,654 11
4,875 10,478 (5,603)
&,000 1] 8,000
S60 700 260
32,283 30,108 2,175
25,850 26,764 (914}
4,600 G938 3,662
5,500 10,144 (4,644)
1100 1,208 (108)
1.550 1,248 02
4,100 4,405 {305)
4,500 4972 {472y
200 ] 200
1,700 1,879 (179
6,900 7,874 (974)
2,000 Q 2,000
12,000 11,674 126
18,500 13,720 4,780
1,100 200 300
1] 20,246 (20,246)
2,800 3,074 (274)
1] 1,110 (1,1100
911,760 891,377 20,383
91,028 03,884 {2.856)
7,000 5,550 1,450
28,000 24,882 3,118
10,000 9,069 93]
26,000 22,126 3,874
23,000 10,988 12,012
185,028 166,490 18,529
122,741 92 637 10,109
B, 000 40421 10,579
70,000 31,368 18,631
15,000 37,481 (2,481)
37.000 13,851 23,149
324,741 244,754 79,987

Total winter roads

See Motes to Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE TN
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED TUNE 30, 2016

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Budpet Actual (Unfavorahle)
General
Resurfacing - gravel 117,000 130,006 (13,006)
Bridge maintenance 10,000 213 9,787
Read signs and fencing 4,000 3,145 855
Guardrails 8,000 10,520 {2,520
Total general 139,000 143,884 (4.884)
Other
Workers' compensation 32,954 33,510 (556}
Health insurance 27.937 39,896 (11,959
Social Security 16,353 14,502 1,851
Unemployment 402 208 194
Disability insurance R45 760 a3
Life insurance 790 £16 (26)
Health insurance buyback 4875 5,062 (187)
Deductible 2,400 0 2,400
Pension 11,651 10,288 1,363
General insurance 11,160 11,184 (24)
Storm water permit ] 2,766 (2,766}
Erosion control 4,000 4,112 (112}
Supplies 4,000 (501} 4,801
Advertizing 300 70 (210}
Training 300 Gl 440
Telephone 1,300 2,707 (1,407
Garage 23,000 13,479 9,521
Trash remaoval 1,285 134 1,151
Street lights 1,000 8,053 1,947
Traffic lights 2,000 2,017 (17)
Uniforms 6,200 6,011 189
Total other 162,152 155,374 6,778
Total highways 810,921 710,511 100,410
See Moles to Financial Statements. =21 -
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE TN
FUND BALANCE - COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Appropriations
Batiered Women Services 975 973 0
Berlin Volunteer Fire Department 242,454 242,454 0
Barre Area Senior Center 1,000 1,000 0
Central Vermont Adult Basic Education 1,200 1,200 1]
Capstone Community Action 300 500 0
Central Vermont Council on Aging 2,500 2,500 ]
Central Vermont Home Health and Hospice 5,700 5,700 0
Family Center of Washington County BO0 F00 0
Good Samaritan Haven 8O0 800 ]
Green Mountain Transit Agency 10,920 10,920 0
Green Up Vermont 150 150 0
Just Basics, Inc. 2,000 2,000 0
Montpelier Senior Center 3,500 3,500 0
People's Health & Wellness Clinic 500 0o 0
Prevent Child Abuse VT 350 350 0
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 200 200 0
Sexuval Assault Crisis Team 300 300 0
Vermont Assoc. for the Blind & Visually Impaired 500 500 0
Vermont Center for Independent Living 1,000 1,000 0
Washington County ¥ outh Service Bureau 300 300 0
Total appropriations 275,849 273,849 0
Debt service
Principal 55,012 45,893 0,119
Interest 4.490 5,399 (909)
Total debt service 39,502 51,292 8210
Capital outlays
General povermment 10,000 31,000 (21,000)
Highway 185,000 168,058 16,942
Police 33,000 34,050 950
Total capital outlays 230,000 233,108 {3,108)
Total expenditures 2,865,897 2,736,233 129,664
Excess Revenues (Expenditures) 3,500 141,801 138,301
Other Financing Sources (Lses)
Sale of assets 0 16,788 16,788
Transfers out {3,500 (3,500) 0
Total other financing sources (uses) {3,500) 13,288 16,788
Met Change in Fund Balance b 0 155,089 § 155,089
Fund Balance - July 1, 2015 904,514
Fund Balance - June 30, 2016 £ 1,059,603
See Motes to Financial Stalements, =22
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT H
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
Water Water
Pollution Division
Fund Fund Total
ASBETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 753,721 ¥ B6,024 b 849745
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 19,060 5327 24,387
Unbilled user fees 275,017 41,863 316,880
Grant receivable 0 258977 258,977
Total current assets 1,047,798 402,191 1,449,980
Non-Current Assets
Land o 106,000 106,000
Construetion in process 3,425 3,613,025 5,616,450
Plant and equipment, net of depreciation 658,302 ] 658,302
Total non-current assets 6o, 727 5,119,025 6,380,752
Total azsets 1,709,525 6,121,216 7.830,741
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 17,696 287 17,983
Construction and retainage payable 0 204,254 204,254
Accrued interest payable 1] 10,594 10,854
Custoiner overpayments 67 ] a7
Advances from other funds 0 143,733 143,733
Due to other funds 79,256 25,256 104,512
Bond and note payable due within one year 1] 108,473 108,473
Total current liabilities 97,019 492,897 SE0.016
Noncurrent Lisbilities
Bond and note payable due afier one year 0 3,927,742 3,527,742
Total noncurrent habilities 0 31,927,742 3,027,742
Total liabilities 97,019 4 420,639 4,517,658
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debi 661,727 1,478,556 2,140,283
Unrestricted 950,779 272,021 1,172,800
Total net pozition 5 1,612,506 F 1,700,577 £ 3,313,083
See Motes to Financial Statements. -23-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT EXHIBIT 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEMNSES AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Water Water
Pollution Diivision
Fund Fumnd Trotal
OFERATING REVENUES
User charges and fees £ 547659 4 86,044 £ 634,603
Interest and penalties 4,670 469 3,139
Total operating revenues 552329 87,413 639,742
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wapes and related 16,079 484 16,563
Professional services 1,349 3,380 4,729
Maintenance, operations and services 484,118 21,838 305,956
Administrative expenses 6,176 1,117 7,293
Depreciation 30,594 0 30,594
Total operating expenses 51316 26,819 365,135
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 14,013 60,504 74,607
NONMOPEREATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant income 0 1,702,176 1,702,176
Tnierest expense ] (62,593) (62,593)
Interest income G711 0 9.711
Met nonoperating révenues 9.711 1,639,583 1,649,294
CHAMGE IN NET POSITION 23,7124 1,700,177 1,723,901
NET POSITION - JULY 1, 2015 1,588,782 AL 1,589,182
NET POSITION - JUNE 30, 2016 5§ 1,612,306 $ 1,700,577 % 3.313,083

See Motes to Finaneial Stalements,

-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM (TOQ} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received rom cusiomers
Cash payments to supplicrs for goods and services
et cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM MOMNCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash payments from other funds

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FIMAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from long-term debt and grants
Principal paid on capital debs

Additions of capital assets, net of change in related payables

Interest paid on capital debt

Met cash from (i) cepital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on cash and investmenis
Met cash from investing activities

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1, 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2016

RECOMCILIATION OF IMCOME FROM OPERATIONS
TO MET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from operstions
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations 1o net cas
flow from opereting activitics
Depreciation
{Incresse) decrease in eccounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in sccounts payable
Inerease (decrease) in customer overpayments

Met cash from operating activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT I
Water Water
Pollution Diwision
Fund Fund
L1 530,681 £ 40,223
(307,667} {26,532)
23,018 13,601
19,408 3602
L] 7,761,818
] {4,307,104)
{31,842) (3,322.661)
0 1 54,680)
{31,842 77,371
9,711 0
9,711 0
20,296 94 664
733,425 1,360
b 733,731 5 96,024
b3 14,0013 3 60,594
50,504 il
(20,216) (47,190)
&0 287
(1,432} {
5 23,019 b 13,691
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2016
Cemetery
Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents b 13,962
LIABILITIES 0
NET POSITION

Restricted 5 13,962
See Notes to Financial Statements. -26 -
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Cemetery
Funds

ADDITIONS

Interest 3 7
DEDUCTIONS 0
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 7
NET POSITION - July 1, 2015 13,955
NET POSITION - June 30, 2016 b 13,962
See Motes to Financial Statements, -27-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

The Town of Berlin (the Town) is a unit of local government organized under the statutes of the
State of Vermont. The Town is governed by a five member Sclect Board. The Town provides
various services as authorized and funded by State government or Town voters,

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) is primarily
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and Jocal governments through its pronouncements
(including Statements and Imterpretations). The more significant accounting policies established
in GAAP and used by the Town are discussed below.

Reporting Entity

The Town's basic financial statements include the accounts of all Town operations. The criteria

for including organizations as component uniis within the Town's reporting entity are set forth in
GASB 14 as amended by GASB 39, and Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Based on the criteria, the Town has no component units.

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Sitalements

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a
whole) and fund financial statements (focusing on the Town’s major funds). The government-
wide financial stalements calegorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

The govemment-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and {b) are reported ona
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-lerm debt and obligations. The Town’s net position is reported in three parts —
mvested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.
The Town first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifyving activities for which both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Town®s governmental funciions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported
by general government revenue {property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, {ines,
permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation)) by related program revenue, including operating and capital grants and
contributions. Program revenue must be directly associated with the governmental function
(public works, etc.} or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and
discretionary grants while capital grants and contribution column reflects capital specific grants
and contributions.

The net costs (by povernmental function or business-type activity) are normally covered by
gemeral revenues (property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, ete.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the
change in the Town's net position resulting from the current year's activities.
=28
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reporied in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-halancing accounts
that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The
various funds are reported by major fund within the financial statements.

The Town’s major funds consist of the General Fund, the Water Pollution Fund and the Water
Division Fund. The non-major funds of the Town consist of the Recreation and Parks Fund,
Conservation Fund, Montpelier Filtration Fund, Bike Path Fund, Bridge Fund and the Road
Project Fund. The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Town. The Water Pollution
Fund accounts for the activity of the water pollution system. The Water Division Fund accounts
for the activities of the Town's water supply sysiem.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes
in net position, and cash flows. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable
are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the
proprietary funds of the Town:

Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that
the cost of providing services, including capital coste, be recovered with fees and charges
or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar
costs. The Water Pollution Fund and the Water Division Fund are major Enterprise
Funds.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds account for assets held in a trustee capacity (trust funds) or as an agent (agency
funds} for the benefit of parties outside of the Town. The Town's fiduciary fund is the Cemetery
Fund, which is a trust fund.

Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
Governmeni-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the balance sheet {or
statement of net position). Fund equity is segregated into invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position, Operating statements present
increases (1.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position.

- 20
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TOWN OF BERLIM, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 310, 2014
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Baxix of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates 1o the timing of the
measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Aeccrual

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and
the proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting,
Revenues are recognized when transactions ocour and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Medified Acerual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified acerual basis of accounting, revenue is recorded when
susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available, “Available” means collectible within
the current period or within 60 days after year end for property taxes and six months for other
revenue {granis and loans). Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual
basis of accounting when the related liability is incuwrred. The exception to this general rule is
that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debl, compensated absences, claims
and judgments, and certain prepaids, which are recognized when due/paid.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position

Met position represents the difference between assets and labilities in the statement of net
position. Met position is divided into three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consist of the historical cost of capital
assets less accumulated depreciation and less any deblt that remains outstanding that was
used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets.

Restricted net position — consist of assets that are restricted by the Town’s creditors,
enabling legislation, by grantors, and by other contnibutors.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position is reported in this category.
Unavailable Revenue

Linavailable revenue consists of the following:

General Fund ~ Delinquent taxes not collected within sixty (60) days after year end and
ather receivables not collected within six months after year end.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUME 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Pensions

GASE Statement No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures.

For purposes of measuring the net pension Liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related (o pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) and additions
to/deductions from VMERSs fiduciary net positon have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by VMERS. For this purpose, benelit payments {including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Cutflows of Resouwrces

The Town reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outtlows of
resources in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net
position. The deferred outflows of resources reported in this year’s financial statements are for
1) the difference between expected and actual experience 2) changes in assumptions 3)
contribitions made subsequent to the measurement date 4) differences between projected and
actual investment eamings and 3) changes in proportion and differences between cmployer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. Mo deferred outflows of resources affect
the governmental funds financial statements in the current year.

Deferred Inflows of Resowrces

The Town®s statements of net position and its governmental fund balance sheet report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an
increase in net position that applies to a future period(s).

Deferred inflows of resources are repoerted in the Town’s statement of net position for changes in
proportion and differences between Town contribulions and proportionate share of contributions.
These deferred inflows of resources are attributed to pension expense over a total of 5 years,
including the current year.

In its governmental funds, the only deferred inflow of resources 15 for revennes that are not
considered available. The Town has one item which occurs because governmental fund revenues
are not recognized until available {collected not later than sixty days after the end of the Town’s
fiscal year for property taxes, and six months for all other revenues) under the modified accrual
basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable
property tax revenue is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. The Town did not
have deferred inflows of resources to report in its government-wide or proprietary fund financial
statements for the current year,
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUME 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Egquity

GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions™
provides maore clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the
constraints placed on a povernment’s fund balance more transparent. The following
classifications dezscribe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes
for which resources can be used:

MWonspendable fund balances - Indicates the portion of fund equity that cannot be spent due
to their form (e.g. inventories, prepaids and long-term receivables) or funds that legally or
contractually must be maintained intact.

Resiricied fund balances - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is mandated for a specific
purpose by external parties, constitutional pravisions, or enabling legislation (e.g. federal
and state grants, bondholders, trost and trustee accounts),

Commitied fund balances - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is sei aside for a specific
purpose by the Town's highest level of decision making authority, the voters, as a result of
griicles passed at Annual or Special Meetings.

Assigned fund balances - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is set aside with the intent
to be used for a specific purpose by the Selectboard. Assigned funds cannot cause a defiert
in unassigned fund balance.

Unassigned fund balanees - Indicates the portion of fund equity that has not been classified
in the previous four caleponies. All funds in this category are considered spendable
resources. This category provides the respurces necessary to meet unexpected expenditures
and revenue shortfalls,

When an expenditure is incurred that qualifies for payment from either of the three unrestricted
fund balance categories, it will be applied in the following order:

1. Committed

2 Assigned
3 Unassigned
Cash and Cosh Equivafents

The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, cash
with fiscal agent, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

Ifnventory

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption by the

highway department and iz valued at cost, using the first-in/first-out method. Inventory is
recorded as an expenditure when consumed rather than when purchased.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the
date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an assel are capitalized. Net interest costs are capitalized on projects during the
comstruction period.

Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 30 years
Infrastructure 15 - 30 years
Machinery and equipment 5 = 10 years
Vehicles 4 — 10 years

GASB No. 34 requires the Town to report and depreciale new general infrastruchure assets
prospectively starting July 1, 2003, General infrastructure assets include roads, bridges,
underground pipe (olher than related to utilities), traffic signals, ete.

Accrued Compensated Absences

Government-Wide Financial Statements — All vested or accumulated vacation leave is reported
as a liability and an expense on the government-wide financial statements, Sick days are not
accroed since they are not paid when the employee terminates employment,

Fund Financial Statements - Vested or accumulated vacation leave that has matured 15 reported
as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts of
vested or aceumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are not reported as a liability in the fund financial statements and no
expenditure is reported for thess amounts. Unused sick davs may be accumulated to use in the
following year, but sick days are not accrued since they are not paid when the employee
terminates employment.

Budgetary Accawnting

The Town employs a formal budgetary process as 1 management control device during the year
for the General Fund. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget to Actual, presents comparisons of the budpet with actual data. The budget numbers
shown are on the same basis as the financial statements.

The Town is not legally required to adopt a budget for funds other than the General Fund.
Therefore, a budgetary comparison is not presented for those funds.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Interfund Activities

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (ie,
the cwrrent portion) or “advances to/from other funds™ (i.e., the non-current portion). Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-lype activitics
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances™.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
reserve account (nonspendable fund balance) in the applicable funds o indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs that are applicable o future accounting periods and are
reccorded as prepaid expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumplions that affect cerlain reporled amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS

The Treasurer is authorized to invest excess deposits and investments according o policies set by
the Selectboard.

Custodial Credii Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Town's deposils may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2016, $1,292,788 of the
povernment's bank balance of $2,067,861 was exposed to custodial credit risk. A summary of
the Town’s custodial credit risk is as follows:

Bank
Balance
Insured by FDIC 5 775,073
Uninsured, collateralized by securities held
by the pledging financial matitution 1,191,388
Uninsured, uncollateralized 101,400
Total 52,067,861
- 3d-
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes in the Town of Berlin support the School District as well as Town operations.
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property owned as of April 1%, Listers establish a
grand list of all property and the Selectboard sets the tax rate required to raise the {ax revenue
authorized by Town and School District voters and the Vermont Ageney of Education. Taxes
are payable in four installments, in August, Movember, February and May. All late payments are

subject to an 8% penally, and interest.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND LOAN

Dering fiscal year 2015 the General Fund loaned the Water Division $143,733 at 0% interest.
The note is a demand note that is due in its entirety on June 30, 2021,

NOTE 5- INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. $3,500 was transferred to the Recreation and Parks Fund from the General Fund

per budget awthorization.

The composition of due from/{to) other funds at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Due from Due to
other funds other funds
Governmental funds:
General Fund 5 50,624 b ]
Recreation and Parks Fund 1,648 1]
Montpetier Filtration Fund 1,280 o
Bridge Fund 19,398 0
Road Project Fund 29,562 4
Proprietary funds:
Water Pollution ] 749,156
Water Division ] 25,256
3 104,514 3 1,512
NOTE 6 - RECEIVARBLES
Receivable balances as of June 30, 2016 were as follows:
Governmental — Business-Type Met
Activities Activities FReceivables
Delinguent taxes, penalty & interest :
receivable, net of 523547 allowance F 137242 b1 L] 5 137242
Grant receivable- USDA i] 258,977 238,977
Unbilled user fees i 116,380 116,880
Acets receivable - State 8,904 0 E9594
Accts receivable - other, nel of 52,500 allow. (business-type) 48,089 24 387 72,476
3 194325 P 600,244 F 794,569
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2016
(Continued)

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS
The following 15 a summary of the changes in capital assets for the year:

{Restated)
Balance Balance
Junse 30, 2015 Additions Disposils {Depreciaion)  June 30, 2016
over i
Capial aseers not depreciated
Lam 3 52400 b il 19 i] i ] 5 52900
CIP - Friendship Park 0 31,000 ] (i 31,000
CIP - Berlin Bike Path 12 A58 i 1] 1] 12458
Total capital azsets not depree, B4, 858 31,000 i i 115,858
Capitall assets being deprecinted
Buildings and improvements 267,845 13 ] L] 287,843
Infrastructure 1,660,069 122993 L ] L] 1,783,062
Machinery and equipment 173,539 LiJ ] 1] 173,539
Vehicles 1,606,343 79,115 (57.938) 0 1,627,520
Tolal capitnl assets being depr. 3,727,796 202,108 [37.938) ] 3471966
Less accummulated depreciation forn
Buildings and improvements (%B,354) 0 ] [9.595) {107 949%
Infrastructors (356,681} 0 a (71.529) (6286100
Machinery and equipment {135,680 ] 0 (1,630} (143,310
Wehicles (1,067,435) ] 57,938 {177,665 (1,187 663)
Total accum. depreciation 1,858 650) 1] 57,938 (266,819 (2,067,531}
Total capitzl assets, net of deprec. 1,860, 146 202,108 ] (266,819) 1,804,435
Total gow't activites asse1s, net 5 1954004 5 233,108 3 [1] L 260819 § 1,920,293
Butiness-foe aclivilies
Capizal assels not depreciated
Lanl 5 106,000 i 1] 5 ] 5 0 5 16,000
CIP - water pollation 3425 ) 0 i 3,424
CIP - water division 2,539,200 3,073,825 0 o 5,613,025
Tatal capital esseis not deprec. 648,625 3,073,825 ] 0 5,722 450
Capitel assels being depreciated
Caphtal improvemens 711,732 31,842 ] i} T49,574
Main purnp upgrades BE.T01 1] ] i} 58,701
Equipment 71,549 0 i} 1] T1,54%
Total capital assets being depr. §77,982 31,842 ] 0 905,824
Less accumulaled depreciation for:
Capital improvements (151,841) ] ] {24,137) {174,978)
Main pump upjrades {8,037 i ] {1,957) (10,554
Equipment (61,050) 1] L] {3,500) 184,350}
Tedal aceum. depreciation {220,528) 1] [ {30,594 {251,522}
Total capital assets, net of deprec, § 3305679 3 3,105,667 5 L1 3 030,5%4) 3 6,380,752

Drepreciation for the governmental activities was charged to general government for 581,524,
highway for $141.559 and police for $43,736. Depreciation for the proprietary funds consisted
of £30,594 for the Pollution Fund.
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TOWHN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE § — UNAVAILABLE REVENUE

Unavailable revenue in the General Fund consists of 110,319 of property iaxes not received
within sixty days afier year end,

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities
Due within
Bond payable to Vermont Bond Bank with vearly principal reduction one year
of $10,000 until 11/15/24, then $5,000 due 11/15/25, variable interest
due semiannually. £ 95000 10,000
Maote payable to Northfield Savings Bank for dump truck and chipper,
Principal and interest payments of $5,971 due quarterly through
March 2020. Interest at 1.99%. 85,801 22,314
Subtotal 180,801 B 32314
Accrued compensated absences 26,460
Total 207,270
Amount due within one year (32,314)
Amount due after one year F 174,956
Proprietery Funds
Water Division Fund
Note payable to State of Vermont for water supply project. The loan
balance remaining is anticipated loan forgiveness expected to be
recognized by the State in fiscal year 2017, § 49,92 5 49521
Mote payable with USDA, semiannual principal and interest
payments of $81,405 through November 2055, interest at 2.625%. 3,986,194 38,352
Total 4,036,215 B 108473
Amount due within one year ( ﬂﬂ,d??.l
Amount due afier one year § 3.927742
=37-
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TOWN OF BEELIN, VERMONT
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Long-term debt will mature approximately as follows:

Governmental Froprictary
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2017 § 32314 § 5628 § 37942 § 108473 5 14238 § 212,731
2018 12,768 4,401 37,169 60,099 102,711 162,810
2019 33,230 3.475 36,703 61,687 100,123 162,810
2020 27,489 2,558 30,047 63,316 09,494 162,810
2021 10,000 1,567 11,567 64,989 97,811 162,800
2022-2026 45,000 2,598 47,598 351,629 462,630 814,259
2027-2031 0 i 0 400,604 413,445 814,049
2032-2036 o ] 0 456,400 157,650 814,050
2037-2041 0 0 0 519,968 294 082 £14,050
2042-2046 o ] 0 592,390 221,660 B14,050
2047-2051 0 0 0 674,897 139,153 B14,050
2052-2056 0 0 0 681,763 45,227 726,900
Total % 180801 O 20227 0§ 201,028 0§ 4036215 52439244 0§ 6,475,450

The following is a summary of changes of long-lerm liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Governmental Proprietary Total
Balance at June 30, 2015 b 238,257 § 2,024,703 § 2,282,960
Proceeds 0 6,318,619 6,318,619
Acerped vacation earmed 769 0 7O
Accrued vacation used (5.863) 0 (5,363)
Principal payments (45,893) {4,307,107) (4,353,000)
Balance at June 30, 2016 5 207,270 5 4,036,215 5 4,243,485

Interest of $67,992 was paid on long-term debt in fiscal year 2016.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED/COMMITTED/ASSIGNED FUND BALANCES

MNet position and fund balances are committed/restricted/assigned as follows:

Restricted Net
Position & Committed Assigned
Fund Balance  Fund Balance Fund Balance

Police Community Fund 5 1] 5 14879 3 [i]
Fire warden ] 900 0
Building maintenance 0 7,026 )
Task force 0 3,000 0
Cemeteries 0 2,758 0
Bridge maintenance ] 34,799 ]
Economic Dev, Board 0 1,515 0
Highway equipment ] 847 0
Bond build renovation 0 5,974 0
Planning 0 1,100 ]
Water supply 0 2,165 0
Police equipment 0 B.497 ]
Recreation and parks 15,564 0 ]
Conservation 40,960 0 0
Montpelier Filtration 1,280 0 0
Rike path 55,304 1] ]
Bridges ] 19,358 ]
Road projects 0 29,562 ]
Computer equipment 0 0 1,350
Capital budget 1] 0 10,000
Highway paving/tires 0 0 18,151
Reappraisal 159,429 0 0
Listers education 821 0 0
Records restoration 13,488 0 t]

Totals £ 286,846 5 132220 § 20,50
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TOWHN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN

DEFIMED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The State of Vermont authorized WMERS to establish a new defined contribution (DC) plan
available to members on July 1, 2000. The DC plan is a tax-sheltered money purchase plan
under IRC 401(a). The plan includes a 3% employee contribution and a 3.125% employer
contribution. 100% vestng oceurs afler one year of municipal service.

Of the Town's total payroll of $1,058.268, 107,896 was covered under the VMERS defined
contribution plan. The total contributions to this plan by the employer were $5.530 and by the
employees were $3,275,

YMERS

Plan description. The Tooam contributes to the Vermont Municipal Employees' Retirement
System (VMERS) which is & cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan that is
administered by the State Treasurer and its Board of Trustees. [t is designed for school districts
and other municipal employees that work on a regular basis and also includes employees of
museums and libraries if at least half of that institution’s operating expenses are met by
municipal funds. An employee of any employer that becomes affiliated with the system may
join at that time or at any time thereafier. Any employee hired subsequent 1o the effective
participation date of their employer who meets the minimum hourly requirements is required to
join the systetn. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the retirement system consisted of 437
participating employers.

The plan was established effective July 1, 1975, and is govemned by Title 24, V.5.A Chapler 123,

The general administration and responsibility for formulating administrative policy and
procedures of the retirement system for its members and their beneficiaries is vested in the Board
of Trustees, congisting of five members. They are the State Treasurer, two employee
representatives elected by the membership of the system, and two employer representatives — one
elected by the governing bodies of participating employers of the system and one selected by the
Governor from a list of four nominees. The list of four nominees is jointly submitted by the
Vermont League of Cities and Towns and the Vermont School Boards Association.

All assets are held in a single trust and are available to pay retirement benefits to all members.
Benefits available to each group are based on average final compensation (AFC) and years of
creditable service.

Summary of System Provisions

Membership is open to all full time employees of participating municipalities. The municipality
elects coverage under Groups A, B, C, or . The Town only has Group B members.

Creditable service is service as a member plus purchased service,
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TUNE 30,2016
{Continued)

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Benefits provided and contributions

Avg Final Compensation
[AFC)

Service -.ﬁ.l_“!!l'ltnl Ablowance

Eligibility

Amoumt

M pedimurn Benefil

Groagr A Group B Group T Grodiig I¥
Averapgs armual Average anmual Average snmaal AvErapgs annoal
comrpens ation during compensation doring samipons sl ion during empensation durng
highesl § consecutive highest 3 consecidive highest 3 ponseoutive highest 2 conseculive
yeers yeirs JEArE VEATE
Eoslier of apge 65 wiith 5 Earli=r of npe &1 with 5 Age 55 with 5 years of Ape 55 with 5 years of
years of service or oge 33 years of service or oge 55 servics service
with 33 yeors of service  with 30 years of service
I 4% ol AFC times 1.7% of AFC times L3% of AFC times Z,5% of AFC times
service service ps Group B service as Group O service s Group

member s penen g
carned as & Group A
mimber limes AFC

a0 of AFC, mchxling partion of allowanoe provided

by member Gonlrabulims

member plus percentage  member plus percentape
earned a3 o Group A of emnied a5 o Group A, B,
B member times AFC of 2 member Times AFC

309 of AFC, inchwling portion of allowance provided
by il Conlibulions

Early Betirement Allowance
Age 55 with 5 years of service

Eligibilivy

Admount

Mormmsal allowance based on Service and AFC al earky
relirement, reducexd by 6% oo cach veur
enmmencement precedes Mormal Retiremont A pe

na Ape S50 with 20 years of
SV o
e Mormal abowance Besed

on gervice and AFC a0
earhy realrement, witloos
reduction

Vesied Retirement Allovwance

Elgthitity
Amount

3 wemrs of gervice

3 yenrs of service

& years of service 3 years of service

Allowance beginning @ rsoemaol peisement ape based on AFC ond service ol terminacion. The AFC is 1o be
adjusted annuolly by ane-half of the percentege= chemge in the CP), subject to the limits on “Post-Relirement
Adjusimenis” described below.

Digabil ity Retl rement Allowance
5 yesed of pervies and disabiliy as determined by Retirement Boed

Inumedime allowance based on AFC and servies 1o dase of disabilivy; children's benefls of 10% of AFC payable
o up 10 three minor children (or children op o age 23 Fenrolled in falktime soodies) of o disablad Groop

Ellgibidiry
Arnount

member,

Death Bemefit
Edigibility
Ammount

Aler 5 viears ol service

Reduced early retirernent allowance under 100%% survivor op1bon commencing
immmedsately or, if preater, survivor's benefit under dissbility annuny eemputed as

of ihe -d:ln of death.

ANer 5§ years of service

Alier § yeurs of service After 5 years of service
Ti%% of the unreduced
weorusd beneifit plus

children's benelit

Dptional Benefit and Death nfter Retiremeni

Liffetimoe allowanoe or acjusrially equivalent 50%: or 100% joiml and sarvivar

allowance with refusd of conltibutions pearantee.

Lifiet ime alkrwanoe ar
T contingent
annudlant option with no
reduction

Hefund of Coniribution

Ugrom 1ermina fon, if 1he membsr 30 alects o i oo other beneflt Is pay able, the member's aooamuslaled

comtribitions s refunded,

Post-Retlrement Adjusiments

Adlwancs: o nm."mm: Tor al Jeast ane ¥ear, indrcased on pch January 1 by one-half of the percemage increnss
in CF] ban nor moee than the Tollowing percentaps:

2%

e

3% Bk

Member Contribations

2.5% ellcctive 171/00

4.875% effective 71783

9.625% ell. 71754 and 112 5% effect fve 7/1114
8. 75% ell /115

Employer Contributions

A%

5.5%% aledtive 7/1/15

&.873% eff, 7/1/14 and
T eif 14715

8.7 5% effective 771/14

Retirement Stipend

125 per month pay able an the oplion of 1 Badrd of Revrees
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUME 30,2016
(Continued)

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Town's contributions to the Plan were 546,326,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Oulflows of Resources, and Deferred Inffows of
Resowrces Related ta Pensions, At June 30, 2016, the Town reported a Hability of $231,207 for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
Tune 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to caleulate the net pension Liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the T'own's long-term share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the projecied contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At
Tune 30, 2015, the Town's proportion was (,.2999%, which was an increasze of 0.03961% from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2014,

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Town recognized pension expense of $67,024. AL June 30,
2016, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of rescurces related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Ouiflows of Inflows of
Hesources Hesources
Difference between expected end
actual experience b T.309 i 4]
Changes in proportion and differences
between Town coniributions and
proporionate share of contribulions 14,019 o
Changes in assumptions 46,045
Drifference between projected and
actial investment camings 44,6600 o
Member contributions subsequent to
the measurament date 46,326 i)
Taotal E 158,365 b 1]

Of the $158,365 of deferred outflows of resources, $46,326 was from the Town's contributions
subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as pension expense in the year
ending June 30, 2017, Other amounts ($112,039) reported as deferred outflows of resources will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 34,
2007 § 22919
e 2,919
019 12919
2020 43,282
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

Interest rate —7.95% per annum. Through July 1, 2014, a select-and-ultimate rate set was used,
as specified below. The interest rate set is restarted every year.

Year 1 G.25% Wear 10 B.50%%
Year 2 G.75% Year 11 BS540
Year 3 T.0084 Year 12 RS0
Year 4 75004 Year 13 B.50%
Year 5 T.75% Year |4 E.50%
iear 6 B.25% Year 15 B.50%
Year 7 B.25% Year 16 B.75%
Year & 8.25% Year 17 andl later 0.00%
Year 9 B.50%%

Salary increase - 5% per year

Deaths

Active participants — 30% of the probabilities in the 1995 Buck Moriality Tables for males and
females

Mon-disabled retirees and terminated vested participants — the 1995 Buck Mortality Tables with
no set-back for males and one-year set-back for females

Dizabled retireas - RP-2000 Disabled Life Tables

Beneficiaries = 1995 Buck Mortality Tables for males and females

Spowuse s age — husbands are assumed to be three years older than their wives

Cost of Living Adfusiments to Benefiis of Terminated Vested and Retired Participants - Assumed
to ocour at the rate of 1.5% per annum for Group A members and 1.8% per annum for members
of Groups B, C and D.

Actuarial Cost Method — Entry age normal-level percentage of pay.

Asset Valuation Method — Invested assets are reported at fair value.

Inflation - The separately stated assumptions for investment return, salary increases and cost of
living adjustments are consistent with an expected annual inflation rate of 3.00%6 to 3.25% per
year.

Long-term expecied rate of return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retumn (expected returns, net of investment

expense and inflation) developed for each major asset class using an econometric model that
forecasts s variety of economic environments and then caleulates assel class retums based on
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS {Continued)

functional relationships between the economic variable and the asset classes. These best
eslimale ranges were combined to produce forecasts of the shorl, intermediate, and longer term
horizons by weighting the expected future nominal rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage. The varions time horizons in the forecast are intended to capture more recent
economic and capital market conditions as well as other plausible environments that could
develop in the future over economie cycles.

Best estimates of arithmetic rales of return for each major asset class included in the target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asget Class Feal Rate of Remmn
Equity ol%
Fixed Income 1.91%
Alternatives 6.93%
Multi-strategy 4.88%

Mominal long-term expected rates of return for these assel classes are equal 1o the sum of the
above expecied long-term real rates and the expected long-term inflation rate of 3.0%.

Discount Race — The discount rate used to measure the total pension labality was 7.95%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will
continue to be made in accordance with the current funding policy. Based on those assumptions,
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments to currenl Systerm members, The assurned discount rate has been determined in
accordance with the method prescribed by GASB 68.

The following presents the net pension liahility calculated vsing the dizcount rate of 7.95%, as
well as what the proportionate share would be if it were caleulated using a discount rate that is |
percentage point lower (6.95%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.95%) than the current rate:

1%6 Dipcrense {6.95%) Diseaunl Rme (7,95%) 1% Increage (B.95%)
5 461,820 3 231,207 ] 37,887

Flan Fiduciary Net Position, Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is
available in the State of Vermont’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR). The
CAFR can be viewed on the State’s Departrment of Finance and Managemeni website,
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
{Continued)

NOTE 12 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The government-wide net position for July 1, 2015 was restated below to adjust the beginning
balances of the Town to account for the impairment loss on the Muzzy Road flood property that
was acquired in fiscal year 2015, The governmental activities opening net position was restated

as follows:
July 1, 2013, as previously reported £ 2,978,630
Impairment loss - Muzzy Road flood property (170,721}
July 1, 20135, as restated £ 2807900

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to varions risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees, The Town maintains commercial
insurance coverage covering each of those nisks of loss. Management believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Town. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS

In September 2016, the Town entered into a three year contract for ambulance service with the
Town of Barre. The contract fees are based on a per capital fee with ranges from $29.52 for
fiscal year 2017 up to $33.79 per capital for fiscal year 2019, The contract may be extended for
two additional years at the per capital rates of $36.15 and $38.68.

NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCY

The Town participates in state grant programs that are subject to andits by the grantors or their
representatives. The audits of these programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2016 have
not vet been reviewed by the grantor agencies. Accordingly, compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenses which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies canmot be determined at this time, although the
Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Manapgement has evaluated subsequent events through January 6, 2017, the date which the
financial statements were available for issoe.
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TOWN OF BERLIN, VERMONT
SCHEDULES OF TOWHN'S PROPORTIOMATE SHARE OF NET PEMSION LIABILITY
AND TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNME 30, 2016

SCHEDULE 3

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWRN'S FROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY

VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FLAN
AS OF MEASUREMENT DATE JUNE 30,

2015 2014

Town's proportion of the net

pension lability (asset) 0.29990% 0.26030%
Town's proportionate share of

the net pension linhility (asset) £ 231207 § 2375
Town's covered-emplovee payroll g 779921 § 635,141
Town's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 29.654% 3.63%
Plan fiduciary net positicn as a

percentage of the total pension

liability B7.42% 98.32%

SCHEDLULE OF TOWHN CONTRIBUTIONS
VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT PLAN
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,
2015 2014 2013

Contractually required contribrutions b 46,326 41,921 % 33,576 b 30,031
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (46,326) (41,921} (33,576) (30,031
Contribution deficiancy (excess) 5 ] b 1] b 0 i [
Town's covered-employee payroll §  B42285 £ T19.92] 655141 ¥ 600620
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 5.500% 5.375% 3.125% 5.000%

.48 -
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ASSESSOR’S REPORT

This year we in the Assessor’s office have been busy with many mobile home sales. It looks like
the parks have mainly recovered from Hurricane Irene. Whenever a mobile home is sold, a
mobile home bill of sale must be filed with the Town Clerk. Usually this means that we will be
out to inspect the mobile home, especially if it is one that is moving into town. We inspect
these properties so that we can be sure to have accurate information and to assure that the
owners pay only their fair share of property taxes.

We also inspect all properties where there have been changes for the same reason. If you
obtained a building permit, we will follow up with an inspection.

If you have any questions about your property or would like to know how your property is
assessed, we are always available. Formal grievances are usually held in June but we can take a
look at a property any time during the year. If you wait until after grievances to contact us, any
changes we might make will, by law, apply to the following year not the current year.

We do not notify every property owner of their value every year. Only those who have had
changes will receive formal notification. Information about Grievance hearings are posted in 5
places in town for those who do not receive an individual notice. It is the responsibility of the
property owner to contact us in a timely manner if they wish to formally grieve the assessment
of their property.

If you would like to talk to us, Tom and Sandy are in the office on Wednesdays. We can be
reached at 229-4880. If you need to leave a message, we will get back to you as soon as
possible.

Property information is available any time even if we are not here. The Town Clerk or Assistant
Town Clerk would be glad to help you Monday-Thursday 8:30 — 3:30.

We are available to answer questions about your value at any time during the year. You do not
have to wait until Grievances. If you have any questions or would like us to take a new look at
your property, please let us know.

Don’t forget to file your Homestead Declaration. You must file even if you do not have to file
Vermont Income Tax. You must declare a homestead in order to be eligible for an income
sensitivity payment. We would be glad to help with homestead filings if needed.

Tom Cain

Ted Nelson

Sandy Ross
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TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE — 2016 ANNUAL REPORT

Total Birth Certificates filed
303 Births were at Central Vermont Medical Center

9 Berlin babies born at other hospitals

30 Adoption Certificates

10 Berlin Babies at born at Central Vermont Medical Center
2 Berlin babies were born at home

303 Copies of birth certificates sent to the State
294  Copies of birth certificates sent to Towns of residence
42 Birth certificates corrected
42 Corrected copies sent to the State
42 Corrected copies sent to Towns of residence
Total Death certificates filed
39 were Berlin residents
7 were at home
2 at CvMC
18 were outside of Berlin
16 were in the two Nursing homes
Marriage Licenses issued
16 copies sent to the State
6 copies sent to another Town of Residence

First Class Restaurant liquor licenses

Second Class liquor licenses (stores)

Requests for a catering liquor license

Excess Weight Permits

Dog Licenses

Documents received for recording into the Land Records (These ranged from 1 page to 57 pages)
Property Transfers recorded (25 are Mobile Home Transfers

19 Recorded again electronically with the State
80 Sent via mail to State.
4 New Mobile Homes from a sales lot (no Transfer)

Survey mylars
Certified birth, death, and marriages certificates (approximately)

Researchers signed to use the vault records

Voter Checklist as of Dec. 31, 2016 = 1940 203 removed and 332 added in 2016
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BERLIN RESIDENTS BORN IN 2016

1/8 Elias Fagginger-Auer
2/12  Oliver French

2/25  MaryAda Bushey
3/14  Valentin Cherkasov
3/16  Lydia Whitcomb
3/23  Olin Kelley

4/22  Avery O'Connor
5/19  Merrick Clough

6/1 Levi Haskins

6/10  Theoren Parrott
6/15  Kai Ditcheos

7/22  Louisa Brown

8/5 Cayden-James Weston
8/12  Hugo Druart

8/18  Wesley LaRock

8/27  Carson Ayer

9/30  Emilia Egizi

10/4 Harriet Earle

10/19 Calvin Bramlitt
10/31 Kynnzlee Herdling-Julian
12/1  Austin Avery

12/20 Freya Clark

Angela & Erich Fagginger-Auer
Anne Brereton & Adam French
Christie & Justin Bushey

in Randolph
in Burlington
Emily Medley & Pavel Cherkasov

Meghan Lewia & Shawn Whitcomb in Burlington
Amber Burnell & Lester Kelley

Kristin & Brian O'Connor at home
Ashley & Edward Clough

Hannah & Michael Haskins in Burlington
Jaclyn & Donovan Parrott in Burlington
Jasmine Ditcheos in Randolph
Hannah & Aric Brown in Burlington
Danielle Machon

Adeline & Marc Druart

Morgan & Stephen LaRock in Randolph
Clara & Dana Ayer

Jessica & Anthony Egizi

Sarah Lomas & J C Earle

Brittany Riley & Harold Bramlitt in Burlington
Ashley Julian & Robert Herdling a home

Sarah & Kevin Avery
Ashley Creighton & Kyle Clark

BERLIN RESIDENTS WHO PASSED AWAY IN 2016

Total 21
1/11 Nancy Hand
1/14 Priscilla Sherman
1/21 Marilyn Thomas
1/24 Norma Velander
1/27 Susan Pilette
2/2 Judith Aldrighetti
2/7 Lillian Gaboriault
2/7 Tina Muzzy
2/14 Zelta Corlis
2/23 Debra Maloney
2/24 Ethel McKeage
3/2 Robert Quinlan

Berlin Annual Report 2016

Woodridge

Brookfield Rd

Woodridge

Scott Hill Rd in Barton
Berlin Health & Rehab

East Road at CvMC
Woodridge

Berlin Health & Rehab

Poplar St at Rowan Court
Park Manor Dr

Woodridge

Berlin Health & Rehab
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3/10
3/15
3/17
3/21
3/29
4/13
4/22
5/25
6/2
6/4
6/12
6/15
6/17
6/16
6/23
6/26
7/15
8/16
8/18
8/5
8/30
10/2
10/12
10/16
10/15
11/20
12/7

Virginia Martin
Fernand Langlois
Arthur Bergeron
Amy Leonard
Claire Gallant
Wesley Metcalf
Dennis Plante
Suzette Angell
Earle Stebbins
Helen Emerson
Gretchen Payne
Jared Jackson
Phyllis Markham
Richard Hebert
Ethelma Lowry
John Collier
Stevan Parks
James Collins
Beatrice Mercier
Sanford Harrington
Joanne Davis
Nellie Cooke
Louise Mongeon

Nicholas Mitchell Jr.

Dorothy Johnson
Lorraine Wilder
Martha Falcone

Total 39

Cedar Dr

Hill Street

Woodridge

Third St

VTRT 12

Scott Hill Rd

West Hill

Woodridge
Woodridge

Crescent Lane

Berlin Health & Rehab
Highland Ave

VTRT 12

Point Ridge Rd
Woodridge

Scott Hill Rd

Airport Rd

Berlin Health & Rehab
Junction Rd

Vine St

Highland Ave

VT RT 12

Woodridge
Woodridge

Poplar St

Cedar Dr

Berlin Health & Rehab

in Williston

in New Hampshire

at Mayo

in Burlington

At BHRH

in Burlington
at BHRH

in Burlington

at CVMC

in Williston

at CVMC

at Rowan Court
in Burlington

in Williston

at Heaton Woods

DOG FUND FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2016

293 DO LICENSES  .eveeeeeeiereee ettt et estes e et see st eaeetesssessessas e sssessessasete s nesaeneeeen $3,088.00
293 @51.00 per dog to support Vermont Rabies Program .........cc.c....... $293.00
293 @54.00 per dog spaying and neutering surcharge .......oceeeuu.. $1,172.00
Total to the STate .ooceeeveeee e $1,465.00

$1,623.00
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Alcide, lvan

Allen, Derek*
Armstrong, Sherrie
Badger, Phillip
Barr, Mark*

Bell, Melissa*
Blair, June

Blake, Ed
Blanchette, Donald*
Boisvert, Jason*
Bruso-Chaves*
Buska, Barbara*
Campbell, Clint*
Currier, Erick
Davis, Wendell
Deschamps,
Annette*
Desorbo, Arianna
Dion, Mark*
Dorney, Colleen

DELINQUENT TAXES

Drew, Danny*
Edson, Donald*

El Bekkali, Stacy
Emmons, Angel*
Fleury, James
Graham, Diane
Hammer, Andrew
Herring, Michael*
Irish, Margaret
Jancaitis, Joseph
Jenkinson, Mark*
Lavigne, Debra*
Lowell, Gloria
Madore, James*
Magoon, Lillian
Malone, Marilou*
Manges, Mark*
Maroney, Richard
Marshall, Todd
Mastriano, Dennis

Matison, Sally
McGinnis, Frank
Menard, Carl
Mintzer Brothers
Morris, Lyn
Moyer, Charles
O'Neill, Patricia
Persons, Albert
Pixley, Alicia*
Prindall,
Nathaniel*

Pulsifer, James
R&G Properties Il
Rathbone, Lori
RCC Atlantic*
Richardson, Ricky*
Rouelle, Gaye*
Savard, Sandra
Shepard, Gloria

Sherman,
Timothy*
Simonetta,
Aurelio*

Smith, Bryan
Smith, Donald*
Stridsberg,
Timothy*
Tammac Holdings
Taylor-Paugh,
Cyndi

Thompson, Jennie
Tonne, Ed
Towne, Bradley
Upmal, Kenneth
US Bank*

Vilbrin, Michael
Wheeler, Janette*
Winter, Linda*
Wynet Ltd

* Partial or Full payment has been made
**Accounts under $100.00 (9)
Delinquent tax balance as of June 30, 2016 $162,789.87
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SEWER COMMISSION

The Town of Berlin Sewer Commission is composed of five members of the community
appointed by the Select Board to operate the municipal sewer system. Welcome to John
Charissakis who joined the Commission in October. The Commission meets on the second and
fourth Monday of each month at 7 PM at the Town Offices.

The Commission continued the annual manhole maintenance program, which involves cleaning
lines, inspecting and repairing manholes that have been damaged or have deteriorated over the
years. During the line maintenance it was discovered that a 320 foot section of 10 inch
asbestos cement pipe on Route 302 in front of Dunkin Donuts to Evergreen Drive was damaged.
This section will be removed and replaced this spring.

The Commission continues to discuss and plan future projects to improve and update the
system. Plans are to install a new municipal sewer line on Route 12 this spring, a feasibility
study has just been approved for possible installation of a municipal gravity sewer line down
Paine Turnpike and installation of a sewer line extension line for Bosworth Rd and a portion of
Crosstown Rd is also being considered.

Town Water and Sewer bills are sent quarterly. Bills will be sent by the 15 of January; April;
July and October and payments are due within 30 days.

Our sewer ordinances and bylaws are now posted on the Town Web Site under Sewer
Commission. Allocation Application Forms and Instructions are also posted there for the
convenience of our customers.

Customers may now choose to have sewer payments automatically deducted from your bank
account. There is no fee for this service. Contact our office for details and forms.

Our Administrative Assistant Mary Wissell works part-time and the office is located in the Berlin
Town Office. The phone number is 223-4405, Option 7 or e-mail the office at
sewer@berlinvt.org .

Robin Allen, Chair; Dana Marineau, Vice Chair; John Charissakis; Henry LaGue, Jr. and Wayne
Lamberton Commissioners.

Delinquent Sewer Accounts as of December 31, 2016

Badeau, Robert $719.24 Morway, Scott $158.79
Bell, Melissa $767.62 Pearce, Terry $242.82
Brusoe, Tonya S 80.74 Pixley, Alicia S 60.87
Deschamps, Annette $122.53 Royer, Anthony $234.20
DeSorbo, Arianna S 346.79 Smith, Scott $103.98
Diedrich, Nicholas $154.08 Snyder Properties S 86.95
Gordon, John S 182.25 Thomson, George $610.64
Kingsbury, David $139.18 West, Lynn $262.60
Lyford, Craig & Kathy $ 73.90 Weston, Scott $173.17
Marshall, Todd $1,091.75 Willett, Christopher S 156.30

Worksafe TrafficC  $137.98

Total Delinquents $5,906.38
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BOARD OF CIVIL AUTHORITY AND BOARD OF ABATEMENT

Town of Berlin, 2016

The Board of Civil Authority (BCA) met three times and the Board of Abatement (BOA)
twice in calendar year 2016.

The BCA met twice to review additions and deletions to the checklist and to prepare for
the March Town meeting and the Vermont primary and general elections. In addition the BCA
members assisted the town clerk in overseeing the actual elections, including the counting of
votes.

In July the BCA also met to consider a tax appeal by the Central Vermont Medical Center
(CVMC) regarding its request to have the property of Woodridge Nursing Home (owned by
CVMC) exempt from Berlin property taxes. The assessors had denied CVMC’s grievance and
CVMC appealed. After a hearing, the appeal was denied.

The BOA met twice to consider requests for abatement of taxes. For the first time the
Board began to use a form seeking more information from applicants who requested
abatements based on their inability to pay, 24 VSA Sec. 1545(a)(3).

There were nine abatement requests. In three requests asserting inability to pay, the
BOA abated a total of $5,190.36. In three requests, because property had been destroyed, the
BOA abated 1,624.57. Three cases totaling $93.59 involved manifest error of assessors. Finally,
where property had been removed from the state, $382.68 was abated.
Total tax abatements in 2016 by action of the BOA totaled $7,291.20.

| want to thank all members of both boards for their diligence and judgment. Deciding
whether abatements should be granted due to “inability to pay” is particularly difficult. | also
want to thank Matt Levin for chairing the CVMC appeal due to the absence of the chair and vice
chair.

John “Josh” Fitzhugh
Chair, Board of Civil Authority and Board of Abatement
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BERLIN HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

The winter of 2016 — 2017 will be remembered for not much snow but lots of rain. Our salt and
sand inventory was hit hard from all of the ice. We added a new 2017 Six wheel dump and
plow truck this year replacing a 2009 truck.

In late summer there were paving projects on portions of Scott Hill Road, Crosstown Road,
Addison Drive, and Plateau Drive. We did not get a paving grant this past year although we will
apply for a 2017 plan to supplement our paving budget.

In addition to 14,812 ft. of ditching erosion stone, we replaced sixteen new culverts in various
areas in town. We had more new guard rails replaced on Junction Road and plans are to

continue with additional guard rail in the same area this coming summer.

| especially would like to thank Liz and Gary Richardson for picking up trash on their daily walk
on Crosstown Road.

| also would like to thank members of the Highway Crew, T.J. McDermott, Eddie LaPan and also
Timmy Emmons who came to us this year.

| encourage you to contact me if you have any concerns or a problem with a town highway. Our
telephone number at the Highway Garage is 223-7337.

Respectfully Submitted,

Timothy Davis
Highway Superintendent
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ZONING ADMINISTRATOR

During the calendar year 2016, there were a total of 81 Zoning Applications acted on.

Zoning Permit Decisions 2016

TYPE OF PERMIT NUMBER OF PERMITS

Barns 0
Boundary Line Adjustments 2
Commercial Building/ 11
Additions/Conditional Uses

Curb Cut/Work In Right of Way 9
Deck/Porch 8
Fill Placement 2
Garages 3
Residential Additions 8
Residential Units 12
Sheds 11
Signs 12
Subdivision 3
Waivers/Variances

TOTAL: 81

During the past year, the Berlin Zoning Office processed applications for 12 single family homes,
several of which are replacements for those damaged from Tropical Storm Irene. The office
also processed applications for new commercial development projects, 11 in all, including
Ironwood’s addition to warehouse, Edgewood Development’s new parking and stormwater
controls, and Maplewood’s addition to parking and electric car charging stations to name a few.

The Zoning Office hours are 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM Monday through Friday. Berlin’s Zoning and
Subdivision Regulations and required development application forms can be accessed on-line at
www.berlinvt.org, or at the Town Office. The Zoning Office can be reached at 223-4405 x 304,
or by email at zoning@berlinvt.org.

Thomas J. Badowski
Assistant Town Administrator / Zoning
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ZONING ADMINISTRATOR — ABOUT THE MANDATORY PURCHASE OF FLOOD INSURANCE

The NFIP: The National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) is a federal program enabling property
owners in participating communities to purchase flood insurance on eligible buildings and
contents, whether they are in or out of a floodplain. The Town of Berlin participates in the NFIP,
making federally backed flood insurance available to its property owners.

The NFIP insures most walled and roofed buildings that are principally above ground on a
permanent foundation, including mobile homes, and buildings in the course of construction.
Property owners can purchase building and contents coverage from any local property and
casualty insurance agent. To find a local insurance agent that writes flood insurance in your area
visit www.floodsmart.gov.

Mandatory Purchase Requirement: Pursuant to the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 and
the National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994, the purchase of flood insurance is mandatory
for all federal or federally related financial assistance for the acquisition and/or construction of
buildings in Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs). An SFHA is defined as any A or V flood zone on a
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).

The mandatory purchase requirement also applies to secured loans from such financial
institutions as commercial lenders, savings and loan associations, savings banks, and credit
unions that are regulated, supervised, or insured by federal agencies, such as the Federal
Reserve, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Comptroller of Currency, the Farm
Credit Administration, the Office of Thrift Supervision, and the National Credit Union
Administration. It further applies to all loans purchased by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac in the
secondary mortgage market.

Federal financial assistance programs affected by the laws include loans and grants from
agencies such as the Department of Veterans Affairs, Farmers Home Administration, Federal
Housing Administration, Small Business Administration, and FEMA disaster assistance.

How it Works: When making, increasing, renewing, or extending any type of federally backed
loan, lenders are required to conduct a flood zone determination using the most current FEMA
FIRM to determine if any part of the building is located in an SFHA. If the building is in an SFHA,
the federal agency or lender is required by law to provide written notification to the borrower
that flood insurance is mandatory as a condition of the loan. Even though a portion of real
property on which a building is located may lie within an SFHA, the purchase and notification
requirements do not apply unless the building itself, or some part of the building, is in the SFHA.
However, lenders, on their own initiative, may require the purchase of flood insurance even if a
building is located outside an SFHA. Up to 25% of all NFIP flood losses arise from outside SFHAs
(B, C, and X Zones).

Under federal regulations, the required coverage must equal the amount of the loan (excluding
appraised value of the land) or the maximum amount of insurance available from the NFIP,
whichever is less. The maximum amount of coverage available for a single-family residence is
$250,000 and for non-residential (commercial) buildings is $500,000. Federal agencies and
regulators, including government-sponsored enterprises, such as Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae,
may have stricter requirements.

Questions? Please call the Zoning Office at 802-223-4405 x304
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PLANNING COMMISSION

The Town of Berlin Planning Commission (PC) has spent the last year updating the Town’s
Subdivision Regulations (last updated in 1989) and Zoning Regulations (last updated in 2013)
into a single Unified Code. These draft regulations are intended to shape the development of
Berlin for the next twenty plus years. The PC’s objective is to retain the rural character of the
Town while providing a framework for sound, pedestrian friendly development in appropriate
locations.

The PC has worked through two drafts of the Unified Code and will hold additional public
hearings on the current draft during the first half of 2017. The PC s also updating the Berlin
Town Plan (which expires in 2017) and will also be holding public hearings on the revised town
plan. Following the public hearings, residents will be asked to approve the final documents in a
special election.

A primary consideration throughout the process of revising these regulations has been to
create a viable framework to allow for the creation of a Town Center, a goal Berlin has been
wrestling with for many years. The Berlin Mall owners have expressed a strong commitment to
revitalizing the mall property and have proposed a concept plan that could bring the dream of a
Town Center to fruition. The PC and the Selectboard have both expressed support for the
concept plan. The approval of the Town Plan and the Unified Code are necessary to the
creation of a New Town Center.

Thank you to the residents and landowners who have been actively involved in the process.
The PC has received numerous comments, many of which have been incorporated into the
Unified Code to make a stronger document. A special thank you to Bob Wernecke, the
honorary 6" member of the PC! We encourage participation and questions from any and all
residents. The PC represents the residents but can only do that if we hear from you!
Anyone interested in more information on this process can visit the Town’s website at
www.berlinvt.org/boards-agendas-minutes/planning-commission or call the Town at
802-223-4405 x304.
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POLICE DEPARTMENT

Berlin Police Department

2016 Annual Report
Hello,

Happy New Year to everyone! | have to say, this winter is more of a traditional winter,
compared to our mild start last year.

At the time of this writing, | am most happy to report that the department is finally at full staff.
This has been a long and tedious task. We had been operating short staffed for nearly two
years and it speaks volumes to the dedication and commitment of the officers who hung in
there and kept our collective heads above water. We will now have the capability several days
per week to have an officer on duty 24 hours. Something that this community has needed for
some time. This profession is becoming more dangerous than ever and for this reason, many
young men and women are choosing not to pursue careers in law enforcement. As a result, we
are facing a critical shortage of qualified police officers, not just here in Vermont, but
nationwide. | am fortunate to serve in a community where our Selectboard, Town
Administrator, and residents recognize this dilemma we face and continue to be supportive and
take the necessary steps to allow us to recruit, train and retain quality personnel. We could not
do what we do without your incredible assistance.

There were personnel changes in 2016. Officer Kari Tucker joined us in November. She came
to us from the Barre Town Police Department. She is an experienced, and talented officer and
her presence has already had a positive impact in the community. In January 2017 Officer Dan
Withrow joined us from the Northfield Police Department. Dan did a wonderful job in
Northfield particularly in the area of juvenile outreach and mentoring. He brings enthusiasm
and professionalism to the table and is quickly familiarizing himself with our community. | am
excited to have these two talented officers fill our vacancies and | am confident they will truly
be an asset to this community.

In 2016 your police department responded to 3386 calls for service, made 219 arrests, on 280
offenses, investigated 298 accidents and issued 576 traffic citations in addition to our other
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duties. We continue to see an increase in drug dependence, which directly affects our rates of
property crime, and crimes of violence. We strongly encourage you to work with your
neighbors and look out for one another when your neighbor’s residence is unoccupied. We
also strongly encourage the use of surveillance cameras as a useful tool in helping protect
property. They have become much more affordable and user friendly. If possible please
consider adding them to your residences and businesses.

To that end, we again ask each of you to lock your vehicles and residences when you leave and
at night. Please help us to help you and report any suspicious activity you observe in your
neighborhood and workplace.

| would like to thank the residents of Berlin, the Berlin Selectboard and our Town Administrator,
Dana Hadley for your consistent and overwhelming support throughout the year. You make it
possible for us to do our jobs. You have our word, we will continue to work hard to provide a
safe community for our residents and visitors. Please feel free to call or stop by with concerns,
guestions, or just to say hello.

In closing | would like to thank my staff for their unwavering dedication and vigilance to duty,
and their significant others for their patience and cooperation throughout the year.

Fulltime Officers

Sergeant Mark Monteith Officer Joseph Carriveau
Sergeant Chad Bassette Officer Karie Tucker
Corporal Kevin Blanchard Officer Daniel Withrow

Officer William Pine
Admin. Diana Yahyazadeh

Part time Officers
Officer Jeffrey Strock Officer Jonathon Sanborn

Officer Brian Hoar

Respectfully submitted,
William H. Wolfe
Chief of Police
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Berlin Police Department Statistics 2016
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Berlin Police Department Statistics 2016
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TOWN OF BERLIN STAFF

TOWN OF BERLIN CALENDAR YEAR 2016

GENERAL GOVERNMENT WAGES |SPECIALDUTY*| BENEFITS TOTAL
Badowski, Thomas (Assist Town Admin) 39,985.40 2,199.21 42,184.61
Hadley, Dana (Town Administrator) 61,812.53 16,379.58 78,192.11
Hansen, Jeremy (Select Board) 712.50 712.50
Haskin, Roberta (Select Board, partial) 118.76 118.76
Isabelle, Diane (Treasurer) 53,522.17 10,227.62 63,749.79
Kelley, Peter (Select Board) 712.50 712.50
Lamberton, Wayne, (Select Board, partial) 593.74 593.74
Morse, Rosemary, (Town Clerk) 43,340.57 7,526.87 50,867.44
Nelson, Ture (Select Board Chair) 900.00 900.00
Stridsberg, Corinne (Assist. Town Clerk) 17,693.48 17,693.48
Towne, Brad (Select Board) 712.50 712.50
Wissell, Mary (Sewer Admin) 16,290.00 16,290.00
GENERAL GOVERNMENT TOTALS 236,394.15 36,333.28 272,727.43
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Davis, Timothy (Road Foreman) 61,755.08 8,539.63 70,294.71
Emmons, Timothy (Road Crew) 25,942.56 5,763.19 31,705.75
LaPan, Edward (Road Crew) 45,300.35 21,742.67 67,043.02
Markham, Gerry (Road Crew)** 11,544.75 3,721.29 15,266.04
McDermott, Thomas (Road Crew) 43,520.32 9,677.58 53,197.90
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT TOTALS 188,063.06 49,444.36 237,507.42
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POLICE DEPARTMENT

Bassette, Chad (Full-time Officer) 71,820.65 8,602.80 23,711.52 104,134.97
Bennett, Karen (Part-time Secretary) 285.60 285.60
Blanchard, Kevin (Full-time Officer) 64,484.16 7,176.30 15,546.77 87,207.23
Bullard, Jonathan (Full-time Officer)** 11,164.98 1,920.00 3,663.06 16,748.04
Carriveau, Joseph (Full-time Officer) 50,822.00 13,891.89 10,907.21 75,621.10
Deforge, Elmer (Part-time Officer) 2,359.00 2,359.00
Fredholm, Jonathan (Part-time Officer)** 1,112.10 800.00 1,912.10
Hoar, Brian (Part-time Officer) - 1,360.00 1,360.00
Kapitanski, Kyle (Part-time Officer) 100.98 100.98
Mitchell, Jared (Full-time Officer)** 33,109.86 8,069.40 5,071.38 46,250.64
Monteith, Mark (Full-time Officer) 76,200.68 11,886.24 14,774.69 102,861.61
Norterfonzo, Kevin (Part-time Officer)** 3,742.00 168.74 3,910.74
Page, Charles (Part-time Officer)** 5,540.00 5,540.00
Pine, William (Full-time Officer) 44,313.25 8,032.43 7,528.42 59,874.10
Sanborn, Jonathan (Part-time Officer) 337.00 5,920.00 6,257.00
Satterfield, Charles (Part-time Officer)** 13,132.52 12,512.91 834.92 26,480.35
Strock, Jonathan (Part-time Officer) 11,991.75 3,504.60 15,496.35
Tucker, Karie (Full-time Officer) 13,592.51 5,002.20 3,442.25 22,036.96
Wolfe, William (Chief of Police) 71,479.98 2,147.01 16,733.30 90,360.29
Yahyazadeh, Diana (Secretary) 32,749.62 6,944.34 39,693.96
POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTALS 508,338.64 90,825.78 | 109,326.60 708,491.02
2016 WAGE/BENEFIT TOTALS 932,795.85 90,825.78 | 195,104.24 | 1,218,725.87
*Special Duty Wages are paid from Contract, **No longer Town of Berlin Employee
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CEMETERY COMMISSION

The Cemetery Commission works to maintain the nine historical cemeteries in Berlin:

Black Cemetery East Road Cemetery

Boles Cemetery Howard Cemetery

Colby Cemetery Johnston-Sawyer Cemetery
Cox Brook Cemetery West Berlin Cemetery

Dewey-Wright Cemetery

Information on these cemeteries can be found on the Town website www.berlinvt.org. There is an index of
the cemeteries that can be found on line and also in the Town Clerk’s Office and the Historical Society Office.

Cemetery Commission Annual Report 2016
The commission needs volunteers to serve in order to continue this commission for the Town.

Joe Mangan continues as our lawn care/ maintenance person and he has done a great job keeping up
with everything we ask of him.

No major projects were addressed this year so the current funding provided by the Town was enough
to cover all expenses.

Many thanks to everyone for approval of the budget to keep everything looking great.

Randy Herring

LV VAP VA N VI S VI VTV Vi Vi S VI NI Vi STV VN S VN VI VN S VL VI Vi N VY SI VI NI V) VN VI N VI VI S VI N7 VR S VY NI VY S VY STV VN Vi SN SV V)

Berlin Corner Cemetery is the only active cemetery in Berlin and is not managed by the
Town but by an association. Joe Mangan is the sexton. He can be contacted at 426-3121 or
at 1086 Thistle Hill, Marshfield, VT 05658.
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CONSERVATION COMMITTEE AND RECREATION BOARD

Berlin Recreation Board - 2016 Annual Report

The skating rink at the town office is completely run by a few volunteers. Volunteers are
greatly needed for snow blowing and flooding to keep this facility running. Please consider
volunteering for a couple evenings, weeks or months by contacting andreachandler@ymail.com. Your
contribution would help provide many families with a free, fun outdoor activity.

Muzzy Road Friendship Park was completed this year. A community garden, flower garden,
sandbox, picnic tables and nature path leading to different installations with descriptive signs are
available. Anyone with an interest in weeding or helping to plant a community garden, please contact
andreachandler@ymail.com.

The Cross Vermont Trail Association is requesting a donation of $1.00 per resident from towns
located alongside the CVT to help fund a bridge across the Winooski River. The Berlin Rec Board
recommended the Selectboard allocate a $3000 donation from the Berlin Bike Path savings account.

The Department of Fish and Wildlife submitted preliminary plans to Berlin for a public access
at the north end of Berlin Pond. Our board continues to object to this access as the habitat in this
sensitive area is a valuable resource. This area is extremely shallow for paddling and rarely freezes
solidly in the winter due to running water. The southern access accommodates public access with a
less sensitive area and better winter ice.

Funding for lumber for the reconstruction of the dugouts at the Elementary School will be
included in the Recreation budget this year.

The Rec Board needs more members. Please consider volunteering.

Berlin Conservation Commission - 2016 Annual Report

The Conservation Commission manages the town forests, parks, and trail systems on Irish Hill.
We meet five times a year and it is a great way to connect with your home town. There are many
more opportunities to enhance and preserve natural areas in Berlin. New members are needed to
help accomplish this goal! Please consider attending one of our meetings to find out more. The
Commission meets the first Wednesday every other month starting in September and ending in May.
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DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD

The Development Review Board had a light workload in Calendar Year 2016, meeting only 13 times.
Only 17 applications were referred to the Board for review. The majority of the applications were for
Site Plan Reviews. The applications break down as follows:

7 Site Plan/ Conditional Use Reviews

1 Minor Subdivision (Concept and Final Hearings)

2 Boundary Line Adjustments

5 llluminated Signs

1 Request to construct a residence with access off a Class 4 road
1 Appeal of the decision of the Zoning Administrator

Many of the applications were for amendments to existing permits and 4 applicants represented the
majority of the activity.

During the year the DRB underwent several changes in membership. Josh Fitzhugh agreed to serve on
the Board as a regular member and Shane Mispel volunteered to serve as an Alternate.

Again we would like to thank Carla Preston, Recording Secretary and Tom Badowski, Zoning
Administrator for their good work and making our jobs much easier.

Berlin Development Review Board

Robert J. Wernecke, Chair
Karla Nuissl, Vice-Chair
Henry A. LaGue, Jr.

John Friedrich

Josh Fitzhugh

Paul Irons, Alternate
Shane Mispel, Alternate
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EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT TEAM

The Berlin Emergency Management (EM) Team has continued to meet regularly during 2016 to
maintain team proficiency for responding in the event of a major emergency or disaster, whether it be
natural or man-made. Thankfully, 2016 was another relatively "quiet" year for Berlin, in that we
dodged some of the worst weather events that hit other parts of the state (including ice jams,
flooding, and high winds/lightning). Whatever the cause, we must be vigilant in our preparedness for
such events, no matter the time of year.

This leads to another important point, of heeding warnings when they are issued. Yes, many times
they predict the worst, and luckily, events rarely comes to pass that badly... so people become
complacent, and don't heed future warnings. But every once in a while, the conditions predicted by
the warnings are as bad, or worse... and people who did NOT follow the guidance, paid a heavy price.
Several people paid the ultimate price for disregarding such warnings in 2016, so the EM team
encourages all town residents to pay attention to the weather and to warnings regarding same.

Of course, in order to heed such warnings, one must first receive them... which leads to the Vermont
Alert system, or VT-Alert. This is a free notification system/service to the public hosted and
maintained by the Vermont Division of Emergency Management and Homeland Security (DEMHS),
and allows Vermonters to sign up to receive emergency notifications through a number of delivery
methods, such as text messages, e-mail, and voice messages via telephone. Berlin is a participating
town in the VT-Alert system, and EM team members are trained in sending out alerts to Berlin
residents via this system. You may learn more and enroll at https://vtalert.gov. If you don't have
internet access, please call 800-347-0488 for assistance signing up, as alerts can go to your telephone.

However, there may be residents of Berlin who are unable to receive or act on messages of these
types, who would remain vulnerable to the conditions prompting the warnings and might require
special assistance in an emergency. If you or someone you know falls into this category, there is a
program called Citizen Assistance Registration for Emergencies (CARE) that is run by the United Way of
Vermont, Vermont 211 and E-911. If you or someone you know would need special help in a crisis,
please go to the CARE website at http://e911.vermont.gov/care and complete the linked CARE
registration form and return it to Vermont 211. Your information will be entered into a database
linked to the E-911 system, and the records will be updated each year. All records are confidential and
will only be shared with groups involved in helping to keep people safe in an emergency. Please note
that you must send a new form each year to keep your registration up-to-date.

The EM Team expresses its ongoing appreciation to the Berlin Volunteer Fire Department for its
continued support of the team and our activities. Likewise, the Berlin community is also very
fortunate to have a strong partnership between the American Red Cross and the Berlin Elementary
School in maintaining a shelter agreement, as the need for such shelters occurs routinely across all
types of large-scale emergencies or disasters. The Berlin EM Team also maintains a good working
relationship with other area emergency-related organizations, including liaison support from The
University of Vermont Health Network Central Vermont Medical Center (CVMC), as well as a liaison
from the Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) for our region. Finally, from a regional
perspective, the EM team participates on the Local Emergency Planning Committee #5 (LEPC-5), which
in turn is supported by the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission (CVRPC). The support of
all these organizations is greatly appreciated.
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Finally, we would like to thank all of the members of the Berlin Emergency Management team and our
liaisons for their active participation and dedication to make this a successful team. In 2016, team
members attended training sessions at the annual DEMHS Emergency Preparedness Conference,
assisted with the state-wide Vigilant Guard exercise, and are currently working to schedule EM
training for town officials. The team is always looking to add new members to its cadre of volunteers;
we meet typically once a month, on the second Thursday of the month (somewhat variable,
depending on circumstances) at the Berlin Four Corners fire station of the Berlin Volunteer Fire
Department. We invite any interested resident to stop by and see what we do in trying to prepare for
whatever the next big emergency-type event will be in Berlin.

Respectfully submitted,

Ture Nelson EM Team Liaisons:

Fred Doten John Akielaszek, CERT 5

Val Cyr Julie Didier, CVMC

Katina Johnson Wanda Baril, Red Cross/Shelter Manager

Bruce Richardson

Below are some resources that you might find helpful in your emergency preparations:

Berlin Emergency Management (EM) Team:
Facebook page: www.facebook.com/berlinvteoc

Twitter page: www.twitter.com/@BerlinEOC
Citizen Assistance Registration for Emergencies (CARE): http://e911.vermont.gov/care
Vermont Division of Emergency Management & Homeland Security (VT DEMHS):

Emergency plans for families and/or businesses: Information on how to prepare your
plans is available on-line from VT DEMHS at: http://demhs.vermont.gov/preparedness

Facebook page: www.facebook.com/vermontemergencymanagement

Twitter page: https://twitter.com/vemvt

Vermont Alert (VT-Alert): www.vtalert.gov (or call 800-347-0488)
Volunteering:

American Red Cross: www.redcross.org/volunteer/volunteer-opportunities/disaster-volunteer

Community Emergency Response Team (CERT): http://demhs.vermont.gov/programs/cert
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WEB PAGE

Log onto the Town of Berlin Website at www.berlinvt.org. The opening page has three boxes
with information about office hours, important dates and contact information. Beneath the
boxes are posts with current information. A set of drop-down links at the top of the page can
take you straight to what you are looking for.

The posts contain special meeting information as well as current events in Town and tax sales,
etc. The Zoning Bylaw Information is updated as new information becomes available, this
project should conclude in March of 2017. Current Openings on Volunteer Boards is updated as
positions become available or have been filled. The Fire Permit Procedure and Burn Ordinance
is always posted.

The Town now accepts credit card payments for property taxes and sewer and water fees. The
“Make a Payment” tab has the convenience fees schedule and the URL that will allow you to
make payments on line.

The Annual Town Reports, Audits, and Selectboard documents are found on the “Board &
Agendas/Minutes” tab under “Selectboard”, bottom of page.

The “Community” tab has links to the area schools, fire department and Berlin Historical Society
as well as recreation and energy information. This tab can also be accessed at the bottom of
the opening page.

The “Resource Center” tab is updated weekly with current information about meetings and
events in Berlin. The bottom of the page has local links and Vermont links for services from
these agencies.

The Calendar lists the scheduled meeting dates and times as well as Holidays the Town Offices
are closed. Cancelled meetings are deleted from the calendar.

We hope you will find the information on the Town of Berlin’s website both informative and
useful.

Diane Isabelle
Treasurer
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BERLIN VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT. — FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT
FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT

2016 was a year of productivity for the department. As Chief of the Department, | wish
to thank the residents of Berlin for their continued support, and the members of our
department for their dedication, hard work and loyalty. We continue to have +/- 20 active
responders and half a dozen active corporate members. With the ever increasing needs of our
department, new members are always welcome and we continue to seek volunteers from
within the town.

Our members meet every Tuesday evening in order to facilitate training, building and
vehicle maintenance and corporation business. Collectively, our volunteers provide thousands
of hours of their own time to make sure the department continues to function at the highest
level.

In 2016, members of the Department have participated in regular training activities to
include: Vehicle Extrication, Fire Attack, Hazmat Operations, CPR and First Aid, Water Rescue,
Water Supply/Drafting, and many other skills. In addition, some of our responders are currently
enrolled in a Firefighter Level 1&2 course to achieve their National Pro Board Accredited
certification. This type of course takes a sizable commitment from our members, since courses
of this nature are well over 180 hours in length.

As for the maintenance of our facilities, members continue to provide many voluntary
hours to keep our stations in good working order and looking nice. This consists of everything
from general house-keeping to painting, tiling, and minor general construction. We continue to
strive to find ways to maintain our building and equipment at the most reasonable costs
utilizing volunteer labor from within our own ranks. We continue to work on the large project
we started in late 2014 of transforming our Riverton station. We will be converting the former
bingo/rental hall into a training facility. This will include a minor face lift to the exterior of the
building. The project is also expected to provide a large savings in heating. This project is being
done with funds from fundraisers, donations, etc.

For apparatus maintenance, many minor issues were completed such as tire
replacement, pump gaskets, exhaust work, etc. No major repairs were needed, however we did
re configure compartments on our Rescue truck to better meet our current needs, and we had
paint bubbles and any start of rust spots repaired and then painted. This type of repair will
increase the life and save money in years to come on this apparatus. As always, preventive
maintenance such as oil changes, chassis lubrication, and fluid changes were performed.

2016 proved to be another busy year for the Fire Department. Our total emergency call
volume for the year of 2016 was 562, which was a 31 call decrease. A few of the emergencies
included 4 motor vehicle fires, a person stuck in a machine, and 2 cars in the river. There was no
major building fire in the town